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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
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APPLICATION FOR PERMIT RECEIVED

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

MAR 0 6 2012
This Section must be completed for all projects.
HEALTH FACILITIES &
Facility/Project Identification SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
Facility Name; Central DuPage Hospital
Street Address: 25 North Winfield Road
City ang Zip Code: Winfield, IL 60190
County: DuPage Health Service Area VIl Health Planning Area: A0S
Applicant /Co-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].
Exact Legal Name: Central DuPage Hospital Assaciation
Address: 25 North Winfieild Road  Winfield, IL 60180
Name of Registered Agent:
Name of Chief Executive Officer:.  Michael Vivoda, President
CEO Address: " 25 North Winfield Road Winfield, IL 60180
| Telephone Number: 630/933-1600
_Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant
X Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
O For-profit Carporation O Governmental
il Limited Liability Company O] Sole Proprietorship 3 Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or mited partner.
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Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period)
Name: Larry Beil

Title: Vice President

Company Name: CDH-Delnor Health System

Address: 25 North Winfield Road  Winfield, IL 60180
Telephone Number:  630/933-1600

E-maii Address: {ARRY BELL@CDH.ORG

Fax Number:

Additiona! Contact
{Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name:

Titte:

Company Name:

Address:

Tetephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:




Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name; Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 6067
Telephone Number: 847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number:

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Honey Jacobs Skinner

Title: Pariner

Company Name: Sidley Austin

Address: 1 South Dearborn  Chicago, Il. 60603
Telephone Number: 312/853-7577

E-mail Address: mskinner@sidley.com

Fax Number:




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Central DuPage Hospital

Street Address: 25 North Winfield Road

City and Zip Code: Winfield, IL 60190

County: DuPage Health Service Area VIl Health Planning Area: A-05

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Cadence Health (formerly known as COH-Delnor Health System
Address: 25 North Winfield Road Winfield, IL 60180

Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Qfficer: J. Luke McGuinness, President & CEQ

CEQ Addrass: 26 North Winfield Road Winfisld, 1L 60180

Telephone Number: 830/933-1600

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Garparation Ol Govarnmental
(] Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship 4 Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORBER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM. __ " R i s e
Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Larry Bell

Title: Vice President

Company Name; CDH-Delnor Health System

Address: 25 North Winfield Road  Winfield, IL 60190

Telephone Number:  630/933-1600

E-mail Address: LARRY BELL@CDH.ORG

Fax Number:

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name:

Title:

Company Name:

Address;

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number;




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE

EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period)

Name: Larry Bell

Title: Vice President

Company Name: CDH-Delnor Health System

Address: 25 North Winfield Road Winfield, Il 60190
Telephone Number:  630/933-1600

E-mail Address: LARRY_ BELL@CDH.ORG

Fax Number.

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]
Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Central DuPage Hospital Association
Address of Site Owner: 25 North Winfield Road Winfield, IL 60190

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 25 North Winfield Road Winfield, IL 60180
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownershlp, an optmrl to lease, a letter of |ntent to lease ora Iease

e

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-Z IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM. e e -

Operating ldentity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]
| Exact Legal Name: _Central DuPage Hospital

Address: : 25 North Winfield Road Winfield, IL 60190

X Non-profit Corporation [ Partnership

O For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

OJ Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship | Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an llfinois Cerificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownershl p

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM: . . . " . . ,




Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of illinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.qov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.orq. This map must be in a
readable format. [n addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5 (hitp://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM, . e

Historic Resources Preservation Act Reqguirements

[Refer to application instructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

Preservation Act. — I

APPEND DOCUMENTATICN AS ATTACHMENT-6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ’

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b)]
Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:

Part 1410 Classification: [Check one only.]
. {1 Part 1120 Not Applicable
X Substantive [ Category A Project

X Category B Project
[0 DHS or DVA Project

O Non-substantive




2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief namrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
|_description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

This application addresses a number of distinct projects, to be located primarily in
renovated space in the hospital’s Center butiding. The projects include the addition of a 14-bed
ICU, the addition of an 11-bed acute mental illness (AMI) unit, the relocation of mental heaith
outpatient and partial hospitalization programs, the relocation of a detoxification program,
administrative and support space associated with the hospital’s behavioral health programs, and
the development of physician office space.

The proposed project does not involve the “establishment” of any new programs, nor
does it involve the “discontinuation” of any existing programs.

When Central DuPage Hospital was granted a Permit for its bed tower project in 2007
(Permit # 07-059), the hospital agreed to seek a Permit when then-undesignated space within the
Center building was to be re-used. This application fulfills that responsibility.

This 1s a substantive application because its addresses inpatient as well as outpatient
Services.




PROJECT COSTS AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

) Clinical/ Non-Clinical/

Project Costs: Reviewable Non-Reviewable Total
Preplanning Costs $ 145,000 $ 105,000 $ 250,000
Site Survey and Soil Investigation
Site Preparation
Off Site Work
New Construction Contracts
Modernization Contracts $ 9,537,500 $ 6963325 $ 16,500,825
Contingencies $ 886,500 3 769,900 $ 1,656,400
Architectural/Engineering Fees $ 830,000 3 570,000 $ 1,400,000
Consulting and Other Fees & 181,830 $. 131670 3 313,500
Movable and Cther Equipment $ 5,377,185 3 948,915 $ 6,326,100
Bond Issuance Expense
Net Interest Expense During Construction
Demolition $ 301,890 $ 218610 $ 520,500
Acqusition of Building or Other Property

TOTAL COSTS $ 17,259,905 $ 9,707,420 $ 26,967,325
Sources of Funds:
Cash and Secwrities $ 17,259,905 $ 9,707,420 $ 26,867,325
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond issues
Morigages
Leases (fair market value)
Government Appropriations
Grants .
Qther Funds and Sources

TOTAL FUNDS $ 17,259,905 $ 9,707,420 $ 26,967,325




Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect 1o any tand related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the tast two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project ] Yes X No
Purchase Price: §
Fair Market Value: §

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
[] Yes X No

If yes, provide the doltar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target

utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit costis $ _ negligible

Project S$tatus and Completion Schedules

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings: 1
[ ] None or not applicable X Preliminary
[ ] Schematics [_] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): June 30, 2014

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation {(refer to Part
1130.140):

[ ] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[} Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

X Pro;ect obllgatlon wnl occur aﬂer permrt issuance.
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' APPERD DOCUMENTATION AS A‘I'I‘ACHMENT-S, iN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE ]
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State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
X Cancer Registry

X APORS
X All format document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annuai Bed Reports been

submitted
X All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the applicatien for permit being

deemed incomplete.




Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the depariment costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the depariment’'s or area’s portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

Gross Sguare Feet That Is:
S New . Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space

REVIEWABLE
Medical Surgical
intensive Care
Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE
Administrative
Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL _ . __

t APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT—S iN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM,
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Comptete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utifization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. include observation days in the patient day
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the

application being deemed incomplete.

totals for each bed service.

FACILITY NAME: Central DuPage Hospital

CITY: Winfield, IL

REPORTING PERIOD DATES:

From: January 1, 2010

to: December 31, 2010

Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 213 13,455 51,569 213

Qbstetrics 35 3,755 11,124 35

Pediatrics 10 1,076 3,088 10

Intensive Care 32 2,49 9,048 +14 45

Comprehensive Physical

Rehabilitation

Acute/Chrenic Mental Hiness 15 1,373 5475 +11 26

Neonatal Intensive Care 8 192 1,625 8

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other ((identify)

TOTALS: 313 22,342 81,829 +25 338

)0




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
autherized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
moare general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behaif of _Central DuPage Hospital Association*
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lilinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

o

ey MJurnsss Nl f Vo

SIGNATURE ~ ) '/ SIGNATURE

/(/u/<£ /e 6:0/11//1/555 Miewace Viveos
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
BZESIOMT ¥ C@ {M’.(‘cwhqr_ \/H:-(_ (4&'{ P
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribed and swom to before me
this 26TH- day of&mA%_'Z-_OLZ this 24TH-day of _{%

QOFFICIAL SEAL

Seal OFFICIAL SEAL

SUSAN M BOVE sUS
AN
NS\TACRJM%:EEE% . STAPTE OF ILLINOIS NOTARY PUBLIC - s“i,ﬁ?éﬁ LLINOIS
ION EXPIRES: 1001112 My
Sl lAag eapdlicant v COMMISSION EXPIRES 100112

/0




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors,

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of _ Cadence Health *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

D RE Y __;me{éfww{w

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
e ase VivopdA /0A£ mcé&m//\léig
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
EXSfcvrive Viee [ZCIIPEnT ’/%55/0507" \4 C&O
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and swomn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before rrzmeﬁ

this_ 47 day offgﬂwﬂf_ﬂj&x this 24 7#day of

A

Signature of Notdry

Seal

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

/2




SECTION Il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2, A certified listing of any adverse actlion taken against any facility owned and/or cperated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationalfy recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawai

of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for pemmit, the
documentation provided with the prier applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able 1o submit amendmenis to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

T e

i APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS A'!TACHMENT 11 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1—4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11
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PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to he served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’'s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need te be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation,

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and reguiatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

TS AT TS T T T e = = o

NOTE Irlformatlon regarding the “Purpose of the Pro;ect" WIII be mcluded m the State Agency Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
AGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM EACH ITEM (‘I-B) MUST BE IDENTIFIED lN ATI'ACHMENT 12
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ALTERNATIVES

1) Identify ALL of the afternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes,

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen altemative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alfemative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and finrancial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and tong
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS

REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available,

T T T

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT—13 N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
 PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. « » oo, 5 "2 S P
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SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. )f the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facilty's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square foofage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPCOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

4

' APPLICATION FORM. .

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or cccupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be

provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT.J RISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR 1
YEAR 2

= T = T e

APPEND DOGUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-18, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
APPLICATION FORM. .. ' " L g e -
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: PROJECT DOES NOT INVOLVE SHELL SPACE

Provide the following information:
1. Totat gross square footage of the proposed shell space;

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to each
department, area or function;

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
1o oceupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are

available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed

into operation.

APPLICATION FORM '
[ e

ASSURANCES: NOT APPLICABLE

Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardiess of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service

involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will beé completed and placed inte operation.

T T T et

AFPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT- 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE .
, APPLICATION FORM. .
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SECTION VIl - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA

This Section is applicable to all projects proposing establishment, expansion or modernization of
categories of service that are subject to CON review, as provided in the lllinois Health Facilities
Planning Act [20 ILCS 3960]. ! is comprised of information requirements for each category of

service, as well as charts for each service, indicating the review criteria that must be addressed
for each action (establishment, expansion and modernization). After identifying the applicable review
criteria for each category of service involved , read the criteria and provide the required information, AS
APPLICABLE TO THE CRITERIA THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED:

A. Criterion 1110.530 - Medical/Surgical, Obstetric, Pediatric and Intensive Care

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Medical/Surgical, Obstetric,
Pediatric and/or Intensive Care categories of service must submit the foltowing

information:
2, Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of beds changed by
action(s}.
# Existing # Proposed
Category of Service Beds Beds
[] Medical/Surgical
[] Obstetric
[[] Pediatric
X Intensive Care 32 46
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required

documentation for the criteria:

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.530(b}1} - Planning Area Need - 77 |ll. Adm. Code 1100 X
(formula calculation)
1110.530(b)}2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X
Residents
1110.530{b)}(3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X

Establishment of Category of Service

1110.530{b}4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - Expansion X
of Existing Category of Service

1110.530(b)(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X

1410.530(c)(1) - WUnnecessary Duplication of Services X

1110.530(c)(2) - Maldistribution X X
1110.530(c)(3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X

1110.530(d)(1) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.530(d)(2) - Documentation X




APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.530(dX3) - Documentation Related to Cited Problems X
1110.530{d)(4) - Qccupancy X
110.530(e) - Staffing Availabiiity X X
1110.530(f) - Performance Requirements X X X

X X X

1110.530(g) - Assurances

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-20, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATIONFORM. =~ . . ...
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C. Criterion 1110.730 - Acute Mental lliness and Chronic Mental liiness

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand andfor modernize Acute Mental liiness and
Chronic Mental lliness category of service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Iindicate # of beds changed by action{s):

# Existing # Proposed
Category of Service Beds Beds

] Acute Mental lliness 15 26

[] Chronic Mental liness

3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:
| APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize

1110.730(b)1) - Pianning Area Need - 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100 X

(formula calculation)
1110.730(b)(2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X

Residents
1110.,730(b)(3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X

Establishment of Category of Service
1110.730{b)(4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - Expansion X

of Existing Category of Service
1110.730(b)}{5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.730(c)(1} - Unnecessary Duplicaticn of Services X
1110.730(c¥2) - Maldistribution X
1110.730(c)(3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X
1110.730{d){1) -~ Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.730(d}{2) - Documentation X
1140.730(d)(3) - Documentation Related to Cited Problems X
1110.730(d)(4) - Occupancy X
1110.730(e(1)) -  Staffing Availability X X
1110.730(f) - Performance Requirements X X X
1110.730(q) - Assurances X X X

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-22, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

/7




R. Criterion 1110.3030 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
Categories of Service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):
none applicable for table below
# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms  Key Rooms
]
[
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined betow and submit the required documentation

for the criteria:

PROJECT TYPE

REQUIRED REVIEW CRITERIA

New Services or Facility or Equipment

(b) -

Need Determination ~
Establishment

Service Modernization

{c)(1) -

Detericrated Facilities

andfor

(c)2) -

Necessary Expansion

PLUS

(C)3)A) -

Utilization - Major Medical
Equipment

Or

(c)3)(B) -

Utilization - Service or Fagility

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-37, TN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

s Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
* Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
» Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility ~ Review Criteria, subsection {a)

VII. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a)
$26,967,325_

b}

)

d}

e}

g}

Cash and Securities - statements {e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
instfituttons, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

Pledges ~ for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated receipts
and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and refated fundraising expenses, and a
discussion of past fundraising experience.

Gifts and Bequests — verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and the
estimated time table of receipts;

Debt — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time pericd, variable or
permanent interest rates over the debt time pericd, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for any
interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;
3 For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation

of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, incfuding the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the tease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
pravision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the eptien, including a#l terms and conditions.

Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal vears, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmentai unit
attesting to this intent;

Grants — a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

All Other Funds and Sources ~ verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

$26,967,325 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

] APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-ss, N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM.., .
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IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability not applicable, project to be
funded through internal sources

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding {sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viabifity ratios if:

1. AN of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through intemal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt finanecing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information o be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-40, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shaill provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facllity is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the

applicable hospital standards.

Category B
{Pro;ected)

T

* Provide Data for Prcuects Classd" ed
as:--:,

" Enter H:storlcal and!or Pro:ected '
Years R

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projectad Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each,

2. \Varance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the fegal respeonsibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.

“APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATIONFORM. . -, [ .. .. e eI e
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X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicabie to all projects subject to Part 1120,

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the {ollowing:

1)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Bomrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing not applicable, project to be

funded through internal sources

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing, The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting & notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is
rnora advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term {years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves {in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with feasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment,

C. Reasonahleness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1

Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction andfor modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET Y DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B c D E F G H
Department Total
{list below) Cost/Sguare Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. § Mod. Cost
New Mod. Mew Circ.* Mod. Circ.* {AxC) {Bx E) (G +H)
Caontingency
TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

23




D. Projected Operating Costs

The apphicant shal! provide the projected direct annual operating costs {in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years

following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs {in current dollars per equivalent

patiant day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
completion.

"APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 42, IV NUMERIC SEGUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM. : o # -«
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XI. Safety Net Impact Statement  Central DuPage Hospital

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's materiat impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital appficants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the
lilinois Comemunity Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shail repost charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methedology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hespital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reported each year to the lllinois
Department of Public Health regarding “Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2008 2009 2010
Inpatient 955 1,083 966
Qutpatient 15,753 17,936 18,850
Total 16,708 19,019 19 816
Charity {cost In dollars)
Inpatient $6,212,406 $6,694,000 $6,966,000
Cutpatient $4,470,224 $6,431,000 $8.412,000
Totai $10,682,630 $13,125,000 15,378,000
MEDICAID
Medicaid [# of patients} 2008 2009 2010
Inpatient 2,078 2,304 2,247
Qutpatient 56,362 75,5613 82 392
Total 58,430 77,917 84,639
Medicaid (revenue]
Inpatiernt $23,823,126 $11,833,80% $19.799.126
Qutpatient $6,079,344 $2,636,485 $9,445,556
Total $29,902.470 | $14,470,386 $29,244,662
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT43 IN NUMER{C SEQUENT!AL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM e, e foa B s : i
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XL. Safety Net Impact Statement  Delnor Hospital

| SABETY.NET IMPACT STATEMENT that-describes all.of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTNVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior {o the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the
Ilnois Community Benefits Act. Nen-hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided ta Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shail provide Medicaid information in 8 manner consistent with the information reported each year to the [flineis
Department of Public Heaith regarding "Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "inpatient and Outpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly refevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2008 2008 2010
Inpatient 307 352 34
Qutpatient 1,980 2,594 2,717
Total 2,287 2,946 3,021
Charity {cost In dollars)
Inpatient $1,293 669 $1,438,336 $1,986,874
Qutpatient $1,212,535 $1,462 964 $1,681,304
Total $2,506,204 $2,901,300 $3,668,178
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) 2008 2009 2010
Inpatient 679 704 594
Outpatient 9,197 12,127 11,907
Total ' 10,176 12,83 12,501
Medicaid |revenuej
Inpatient $5,549,008 $9.843,365 $6,169,258
Outpatient $1,280,514 $2,228,363 32,061,783
Total $6,829,522 |  $12,074,729 $5,231,041

iAPPLICATION FORM'
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Xil.  Charity Care Information Central DuPage Hospital

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shali indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity ¢care and thie ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue,

2. if the applicant owns or operates ohe or mose facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in lilinols, i
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as fo the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost ta net patient revenue for the facility under review,

3. If the applicant is not an existing faciiity, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer séurce, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care™ means care provided by a heafth care facility for which the provider does not expect to recelve payment fl'orl'l
the patient or a third-party payer, (20 ILCS 3960.*3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the foilowing format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44,

CHARITY CARE
2008 2009 2010
Net Patient Revenue $527,060 868 | $572,122,109 $590,317,938
Amount of Charity Care {charges} $38,557,935 $48,612.138 $59,838,049
Cast of Charity Care $10,682,630 $13,125,000 $15,378,080
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X#l.  Charity Care Information  Delnor Hospital

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

3. All apphicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the [atest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratic of that charity care cost to net patlent revenue.

2, if the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facilty located in Wincis. If
charity care costs are reported on a censolidated basls, the applicant shali provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of chafity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. if the applicant Is not an existing facility, It shall submit the facility’s projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. {20 {LCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
2008 2009 2010
Net Patient Revenue $208,959,443 $215,424,178 $207,812,882
Amount of Charity Care {charges) 7,423,090 9,158,615 11,858,450
Cost of Charity Care $2,506,204 $2,901,300 $3,668,178
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File Number 3798-159-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

CENTRAL DU PAGE HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON AUGUST 05, 1958, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony WhGTQOf, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 7TH

day o FEBRUARY A.D. 2012
Y

Authentication # 1203801306 -’W’D

Authenticate at. hitp:#fwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number 5217-963-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

CDH-DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 03, 1980, APPEARS TO HAVE
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH
dayof =~ FEBRUARY  AD. 2012

LT
 Sarad % ,
Authentication# 1205401522 \M/w

Authenticate at; hitp:ffwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE

Chicago Title Insurance Company

CHICAGOQ TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, a Nebraska corporation, herein called the Company, for valuable
consideration, commits to issue its policy or policies of title insurance, as identified in Schedule A, in favor of the
Proposed Insured named in Schedule A, as owner or mortgagee of the estate or interest in the Land described or
referred to in Schedule A, upon payment of the premiums and charges and compliance with the Requirements;

all subject to the provisions of Schedule A and B and to the Conditions of this Commitment.

This Commitment shall be effective only when the identity of the Proposed Insured and the amount of the policy
or policies committed for have been inserted in Schedule A by the Company.

All liability and obligation under this Cornmitment shall cease and terminate § months after the Effective Date or
when the policy or policies committed for shall issue, whichever first occurs, provided that the faiture to issue the
policy or policies is not the fault of the Company.

The Company will provide a sample of the policy form upon request.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, Chicago Title Insurance Company has caused its corporate name and seal to be
affixed by its duly authorized officers on the date shown in Schedule A.

Issued By: CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
B
CHICAGQO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY :
1725 S. NAPERVILLE RD A .
WHEATON, 1L 60187 P
Refer Inquiries To: L s ¥ Wanorizea signatory

(630)871-3500

Commitment No.: |1410 020107155 UL

i IV A ST TR

o mi W L s
AT TALITVICINT £
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CHICAGOQ TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE
SCHEDULE A

YOUR REFERENCE: CDH MAIN CAMPUS ORDER NO.: 14710 020107155 UL

EFFECTIVE DATE: OCTOBER 14, 2010

1. POLICY ORPOLICIES TO BE ISSUED:

OWNER'S POLICY: ALTA OWNERS 2006
AMOUNT : $1.000,000.00
PROPOSED INSURED: CURRENT TITLE HOLDERS

2. THEESTATE ORINTEREST IN THE LAND DESCRIBED OR REFERRED TO IN THIS COMMITMENT IS
FEE SIMPLE, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. TITLETO THE ESTATE OR INTEREST IN THE LAND IS AT THE EFFECTIVE DATE VESTED IN:

CENTRAL DU PAGE HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION, A NOT-FOR-PROFIT CORPORATION, AS TO PARCEL 1 AND
AS TO THE EAST 110 FEET OF THE WEST 210 FEET OF PARCEL 2 AND LOTS 3 AND 4 [N PARCEL 3
AND AS TO PARCEL 4

NBD TRUST COMPANY OF ILLINGIS, AS TRUSTEE UNDER TRUST AGREEMENT DATED DECEMBER 5, 1985

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE

ATTACHMENT.2
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File Number 3798-159-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

CENTRAL DU PAGE HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON AUGUST 05, 1958, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 7TH
day of FEBRUARY AD. 2012

¥y Q_\ ,
Authentication # 1203801308 MQ/

Authenticate at. http:/iwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 3
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Ilinois Historic
===r1 Preservation Agency

Iﬁ.. FAX (217) 782-8161
A 1 Old State Capitot Plaza <« Springfietd, lllinois 62701-1512 ¢ www.illinois-history.gov

DuPage County

Winfield
CON - Modernization of Psychiatric Unit, Central DuPage Hospital

25 N. Winfield Road
IHPA Log #001032511

March 30, 2011

Jacob Axel

Axel & Associates, Inc.
675 North Court, Suite 210
Palatine, IL 60067

Dear Mr. Axel:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historie, architectural or
~»chaeological sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illincis State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seqg.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinocis Human Skeletal Remains Pratection Act (20 ILCS 3440),

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.

Sincerely,

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Presgservation Officer

ATTACHMENT 6
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PROJECT COSTS

Preplanning Costs ($250,000)

Estimate of costs incurred during the evaluation of options related primarily to the
1CU component of the project, including site visits, as well as the evaluation of options
for physicians’ office space, and CON-related options.

Modemization Contracts ($16.500,825)

Estimate, based on previous renovation work in the building, of renovation-
related costs associated with 82,820 square feet of renovation, including the moving of
walls and selected utilities.

Contingencies ($1.656.400)
Allowance for unexpected renovation-related expenses.

Architectural and Engineering Fees ($1.400,000)
Estimate of the costs of design work and interface with state and local authorities

through the design, renovation, and inspection processes.

Consulting and Other Fees ($313.500}
Estimate of CON-related costs, moving of equipment, hazardous materials

abatement, local permits, and miscellaneous costs.

Moveable and Other Equipment (86,326,100}
Estimate of the costs of equipping a new 14-bed ICU, all furniture and equipment

for the other project components (assumes no equipment or furniture to be reused),
artwork, window coverings, and miscellaneous equipment-related costs.

Demolition ($520.000)
Estimate of costs associated with the preparation 74,700 sf for renovation.

ATTACHMENT 7
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Cost Space Requirements

|

Amount of proposed Total Square Feet

Gross Square Feet That is:
New Vacated

Dept.jArea Cost Existing Proposed Const. Modernized As is Space
Reviewable
IcU $ 6,731,363 28,200 40,525 12,325 28,200 8]
AMI $ 5523170 10,622 16,000 16,000 Q o
Detoxification 5 1121894 3,000 3,500 3,500 0 3,000
Outpt. Behavioral | $ 3,883,479 12,000 12,500 12,500 ] 12,000
Total $ 17,259,905 53,822 72,625 44,326 28,200 15,000
Non-Reviewable
Staff Facilities G 291,223 995 995
Family Quarters | § 582,445 2,180 2,180
Behav. H. Admin | § 1,456,113 5,620 5,620
Residential Rms. | $ 1,320,209 5,000 5,000
Physicians' Off. $ 4174191 16,100 16,100
Conference Rms. | $ 1,883,239 8,600 8,600
Total $ 9707420 38,495 38,495
Project Total 111,020 82,820
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February 20, 2012

Mr. Dale Galassie
Chairman
Illinois Health Facilities

and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie:

In accordance with Review Criterion 1110.230.b, Background of Applicant, we are
submitting this letter assuring the Ilinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board

that:

1. Cadence Health (formerly known as CDH-Delnor Health System) does not have
any adverse actions against any facility owned and operated by the applicant
during the three (3) year period prior to the filing of this application, and

2. Cadence Health authorizes the State Board and Agency access to information to
verify documentation or information submitted in response to the requirements of
Review Criterion 1110.230.b or to obtain any documentation or information
which the State Board or Agency finds pertinent to this application.

If we can provide assistance to your staff regarding these assurances or any other issue
relative to this application, please do not hesitate to call me at (630) 933-5500 or Michael
Vivoda, President of Central DuPage Hospital, at (630) 933-1600.

Sincerely,

e

J. Luke McGuinness

President & CEO
Notarization:
et / [(@?@M 22
L AAAARAN APPSPAANPASPA 25 N. Winfield Road
‘ ) OFFIC‘APE‘! gEO%E :: winfield, Ilinois 60190
SUSAN 4 T. 630.533.1600
b 4 . B33
% HOTARY PUBU%!“SJQPEEREO; &Tﬁ? 2 TTY for the hearing
§ 1Y COMMISSION EXFIRES: 77 4 impaired 630.933.4833

RAAANNANNNAANIP T 'g 7 cdh.org
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Central Dupage ‘"H-'os'pital Association -
25 H. ¥Winfield Road
Winfield, IL 60190

State of Eﬂimms 175696 8
'Eﬂepartment of Public Health

{ LICENSE, PERMIT, CERTIFICATION, REGISTRATION )]

Th.!: person, firm or corporation whuse narne qppems on this certificate has c::rmhﬂd wl B the
provisions of tha llinois Statutes antVor rules and reguiations and is heraby authorizad 13-
ergaos in the adlivity as indiczted below,

DAMON T. ABRKOLD, M.D.

DIRECTOR . o N .. ‘;:::vzsc!aut:d;r;{lf;qthcﬁly of
Depanmen: of Pubile Heafth

EXFINLTION m.TF_ - C‘J\TEGQFW {5 HUMEER - Ry

03/30/12 . :|-BGBD-| 0005744 ‘

FULL LICENSE
GENERAT, HOSPTITAL

EFFECTIVE: 03/31/11 .

- BUSINESS ADDRESS: ST i~

The f::r: ci ihi‘i l;c:c”sc r.:.a [ calorct! badtg'mnd Prited Gy Authority of tha Sluie af Rlineis » 437

wtf———0 DISPLAY THIS PART IN &

CONSRICUOUS PLACE

REMOVE THIS CARD TO CARRY AS AN
IDENTIFICATION

!
¥
State afittinsis L { 00 968
lepurtmant of Puhl:c Health
gLIGENSE PERMIT, CEHTIFICATION HECISTRATION
Central Dupage Eospital Assoclation

EXPI-’-\&'I‘IDN m‘rE CATEGORY L0 TUNMBER

03/30/ 12 BGED | 0005744
. FOLI, LICENSE :
GERERAL EOSPITAL

EFFECTIVE: --93/.-31/11

- R R 4

Central Dupage Hospital Association
25 n. Winfield Road
Winfield, IL 60190

FEE RECEIPT NG.
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V;The Joint Commission

January 31, 2012
Re: #7444
CCN: #140242
Program: Hospital
Accreditation Expiration Date: July 16, 2014
Luke McGuinness
CEO
Central DuPage Hospital
25 North Winfield Road
Winfield, Jilinois 60190

Dear Mr. McGuinness:

This letter confirms that your January 26, 2012 unannounced extension new service survey was
conducted for the purposes of assessing compliance with the Medicare conditions for hospitals through
The Joint Commussion’s deemed status survey process.

The services at your hospital were found to be in substantial compliance with the Medicare Conditions.
The Joint Commission is granting your organization an accreditation decision of Accredited with an

effective date of January 27, 2012,

The Joint Comumission is also recommending your organization for continued Medicare certification
effective January 27, 2012. Please note that the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)
Regional Office (RO) makes the final determination regarding your Medicare participation and the
effective date of participation in accordance with the regnlations at 42 CFR 489.13. Your organization is
encouraged to share a copy of this Medicare recommendation letter with your State Survey Agency.

This recommendation also applies to the following locations:

Bartlett Convenient Care Center
820 Route 59, Bartlett, IL, 60103

Bloomingdale Convenient Care Center
235 8. Gary Avenue, Bloomingdale, 1L, 60108

Cardiac Rehabilitation Services
7 Blanchard Circle, Suite LLA, Wheaton, IL, 60189

CDH Cancer Center
4405 Weaver Parkway, Warrenville, IL, 60555

CDH Cornerstone Imaging
2001 N. Gary Avenue, Suite 100, Wheaton, IL, 60187

www.jeintcommission.org Headquarters
One Renaissance Boulevard
Oakbrook Terrace, 1L 60181
630 792 5000 Voice

z¢
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Central DuPage Hospital
25 North Winfield Road, Winfield, JL, 60190

Central DuPage Outpatient Physical Therapy
455 Scott Drive, Bloomingdale, IL, 60108

. Glen Ellyn Convenient Care
885 Roosevelt Road, Suite 101, Glen Ellyn, IL, 60137

Naperville Convenient Care Center
636 N. Raymond Drive, Suite 106, Naperville, IL, 60563

Physical Therapy at Charlestowne Medical Office Building
2900 Foxfield Road, Suite 205, Saint Charles, IL, 60174

Physical Therapy at Health Track
875 Roosevelt Road, Glen Ellyn, IL, 60137

Physical Therapy at River North
636 Raymond Dr., Suite 305, Naperville, L, 60563

St. Charles Convenient Care Center
2900 Foxfield Road, Saint Charles, IL, 60174

Wheaton Convenient Care Center
7 Blanchard Circle, Wheaton, 1L, 60187

We direct your attention to some tmportant Joint Commission policies. First, your Medicare report is
publicly accessible as required by the Joint Cominission’s agreement with the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. Second, Joint Commission policy requires that you inform us of any changes in the
name or ownership of your organization, or health care services you provide.

Sincerely,
)4\--\- 5{4{1" Ploeiom /eAJ' Pe D
Ann Scott Blouin, RN, Ph.D.

Executive Vice President
Accreditation and Certification Operations

ce: CMS/Central Office/Survey & Certification Group/Division of Acute Care Services
CMS/Regional Office 5 /Survey and Certification Staff

www.jointcommission.org Headquarters
One Renzissance Boulevard
Oakbrook Terrace, 1L 60181
630 792 5000 Voice
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Geneva, IL 60134
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April 27, 2011

Tom Wright, MBA Joint Commission {D #: 5201

President Program: Home Care Accreditution

Delnot- Community Hospital Accreditation Activily: §0-day Evidence of
300 Randail Road Standards Compliance

Geneva, 11, 60134 Accreditation Activity Compleled: 04/21/20181

Dear Mr. Wright;

The Joint Commission weuld like to thank yous organization for participating in the accredilation process. This
process is designed to help your organization comtinuously provide safe, high-quality care, treaitment, and services
by identifying opporiunitics for improvement in your processes and helping you follow through on and
implement these improvements. We encourage you Lo use the aceredilalion process us a continuous standards
compliance and operittional improvement tool.

The Joint Commission is pranting your organization an accreditation decision of Accredited for all seevices
surveyed under the applicable manual(s) noted below:

mprehensi edilation Manual for Home Care

This accreditation cycie is effective beginning February 02, 204 1. The Joint Commigsion reserves the right (o
shorten or lengthen the duration of the cycle; however, the certificate and cycle are customarily valid for up o 36
months.

Please visit Quality Check® on The Joint Commission web site fer updated information related to your
accreditation decision.

We encourage you lo shace this acereditation decision with your organization’s appropriate stafT, leadership, and
goveming body. You may also wart to inforn the Cenlers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), state or
regional regulatory scevices, and the public you serve of your organization’s accreditation decision.

Pleasc be assured that The Joint Comimission will keep the report confidenlial, cxcept as required by law. To
ensure that The Foint Comumigsion’s information about your organization is always aceurate and current, our
policy requires that you inform us of any changes in the name or ownership of your organization or he health
care services you provide.

Sincerely,

TN O O Y

Ann Scott Blouin, RN, Ph.D.
Exccutive Vice President
Accreditation and Cerification Operations

ATTACHMENT 11
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April 27,2011

Tuom Wright, MBA Joint Commission [D #: 5291

President Program: Hospital Accreditation

Deler- Community Hospital Accreditation Activily: 60-day Evidence of
300 Randall Road Standards Compliance

Ceneva, IL 60134 Accreditation Activily Completed: 04/21/201 1

Drear Mr. Wriglt:

The Joint Commission would like to thank your organization for participating in the acereditation process. This
process is designed {o help your organization continuously provide safe, high-guality care, treaunent, and services
by identifying epporiunities for improvement in your processes and helping you follow through on and
implement these improvements. We encourage you 1o use Lhe accreditalion process as a conlinuous standards
compliance and operational improvement tool,

The Joinl Commission is granting your organization an accreditation decision of Aceredited for al services
surveyed under the applicable manual(s) noted below:

Comprehensiv itation al for Hospitals

This accreditation eycle is effective beginning February 05, 201 1. The Joinl Commission reseives the riglt 1o
shorien or lengthen the duration of the eycle; however, the certificate and cycle are customarily valid for up 10 36

months.

Please visit Quality. Check® on The Joint Commission web site for updated information related to your
accreditation decision.

We encourage you 1o share this accreditation decision with your organization's appropriate stafT, Ieadership, and

governing body. You may also want 1o inform the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), state or
regional regulalory services, and the public you serve of your organization's accredifation decigion,

Pleage be assured that The Joint Commission will keep the report confidential, cxeept as required by faw. To
ensure that The Joinl Commission’s information about your erganization is always accurate and current, our
policy requires thal you inform us of any changes in the name or ownership of your organization or the health
carc services you provide,

Sincercly,

N Y

Ann Scott Blouin, RN, Ph.D.
Executive Vice President
Accreditation and Centification Operations

ATTACHMENT 11
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April 27, 2011
Re: # 5291
CCN: #140211
Program: Hospital
Accreditation Expiration Date: May 05, 2014
Tom Wright
President

Delnor- Community Hospital
300 Randall Read
(Geneva, Illinois 60134

Dear Mr. Wright:

This letter confirms that your Janvary 31, 2011 - February 04, 2011 unannounced {ull resurvey was
conducted for the purposcs of assessing compliance with the Medicare conditions for hospitals through
The Joint Commission’s deemied status survey process.

Based upon the submission of your evidence of standards compliance on April 07, 2011 and Apnl 15,
2011, the areas of deficiency listed below have been removed. The Joint Commission is granting your
organization an accreditation decision of Accredited with an effective date of February 05, 2011. We
congratulate vou on your effective resolution of these deficiencies.

§482.24 Condition of Participation: Medical Record Services
§482.41 Condition of Participation: Physical Environment

The Joint Commission is also recommending your organization for continued Medicare certilication
effeetive April 15, 2011, Please note that the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)
Regional Office (RO} makes the final determination regarding your Medicare participation and the
effective datc of participation in accordance with the regulations at 42 CFR 489.13. Your organization is
‘encouraged (o share a copy of this Medicare recommendation letter with your State Survey Agency.

This recommendation &lso applies to the following tocation(s):

Delnor Community Hospital Home Health Services
964 North 5th Avenue, Building C, Saint Charles, IL, 60174

Delnor Community Hospital
d/bfa Delnor Hospital
300 Randall Road, Geneva, IL, 60134

Delnor Cominunity Hospital Breast Health Center
3310 W. Main Street, Suite 700, Saint Charles, I1., 60174

wwowLjnintzomninsionorg Headquartara
One Renaissance Boulevard
Oaklwouk Termce, 1E. 60181
630 792 5000 Vuice
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Delnor Glen (Rehab) Building
975 N. 5th Ave, Apartment 17, Saint Charles, 1L, 60174

Delnor Refercnce Lab Patient Service Center
2900 Foxfield Dr., Suite 306, Saint Charles, I1., 60174

Delnor Rehab Services
964 North Sth Ave., Bidg. C, Saint Charles, 1., 60174

Delnor Rehab Services (Ouipatient), Geneva 1L
296 Detnor Drive Suite 201, Geneva, 1L, 60134

Diabetes Education, Geneva IL
296 Delnor Drive, Suite 201, Geneva, 1L, 60134

We direct your attention lo some intportant Joint Commission policics. First, your Medicare repon is
publicly accessible as required by the Joint Commissian's agreament with the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. Second, Joint Commission policy requires that you inform us of any changes in the
name or ownership of your arganization, or health care services you provide.

Sincerely,

A Sworr fraws.. Ao PRD

Ann Scott Blouin, RN, 'h.D.
Executive Vice President
Accreditation and Certification Operations

oo CMS/Central Office/Survey & Certification Group/Ihvision of Acute Care Services
CMS/Regional Office § /Survey and Certification Staff

WA FO T LG I S R 0TSy Headquartors
One Renaissance Boulovand
Qakbronk Terrace, 1L 60181
G} 792 5000 Viice

s

ATTACHMENT 11




o

¥ " The Joint Commission

April 27, 2011

Tom Wright, MBA Joint Commission 1D #: 5291

President Program: Home Care Accreditation

Belnor- Community tHospital Accreditation Activity: 60-day Evidence of
300 Randall Road Standards Compliance

Geneva, [L, 60134 Accreditatton Activity Completed: 04/21/2011

Dear Mr, Wright;

The Joint Commission would like to (hank your orgenization for participating in the accredilation process. This
process (s designed to help your organization continuously provide safe, high-quality care, treatment, and services
by identifying opporiunitics for improvement in your processes and helping you follow theough on and
implement these improvements. We encourage you io use the accreditalion process as a centinuous standards
comgliance and operational improvement tool.

The Joint Commission 1§ granting your organization an accreditation decision of Accredited for all services
surveyed under the applicable manual(s) noted below:

I i reditation Manual for Hom &

This accreditation cycle is cffective beginning February 02, 2011, The Joint Commisgion reserves the vight io
shorien or lengthen the duration of the cycle; however, the cerlificate and eyele are customarily valid for up 1o 36

mouniis.
Please visit Quality Check@® on The Joim Conunission web site for updated information related to your
accreditation decision.

We encourage you o share this accredilation decision with your organization’s appropriate staff, leadership, and
goverming body. ¥You may also want 1o infonn ihe Cenless for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), stale or
regional regulatory services, and the public you serve of your urganization’s accreditation decision.

Please be assurcd that The foinl Commission will keep the report confidential, except as required by faw. To
ensure that The Joint Commission’s information about your organization is ahvays accurate and current, our
policy requires that you inform us of any changes in the name or ownership of your organization or the health
care services you provide.

Sincerely,

fon 5wrM W)

Ann Scoit Blouin, RN, Ph.ID.
Exccutive Vice President
Accreditation and Cenification Operations

ATTACHMENT 11
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April 27, 2011

Tom Wright, MBA Joint Comunission [D #: 5291

Presideni Program: Hospital Accrediation

Delnor- Community Hospital Accreditation Activily: 60-day Bvidence of
300 Randall Road Standards Compliance

Geneva, IL 60134 Accreditation Activily Compleicd: 04/21/2011

Dear Mr. Wright:

The Joint Commission would like to thank your organization for participating in the accredilation process. This
process is designed to help your organization confinuousty provide safe, high-quality care, Ircatmest, and services
by identifying oppertunities for improvement in your processes and helping you follow through on and
implement these improvements. We encourage you 1o use the accreditation process as a continuous slandards
compliance and operalional improvement {oak.

The Joint Commission is granting your organizalion an sccreditation decision of Accredited for all services
surveyed under the applicable manual(s) noted below:

Co ensiv itafio al for itals

This accreditation cycle is effective beginning February 05, 201 1. The Joint Commission reserves the sight o
shorten or lengthen the duration of the eycle; however, the certificate and cycle are customarily valid for up 10 36

months,

Please visit Qualjty Check® an The Joint Commission web site for updated information relnted o your
accreditation decision.

We encourage you o share this accreditation decision with your organization’s appropriate staff, lcadership, and

governing body. You may also want to inform the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), state or
regional regulatory services, and the public you serve of your organization’s accreditation decision.

Please be assured ihal The Joint Commission will keep the report confidential, except as required by law. To
ensurc that The Joint Cotnmission’s information about your organization is always accurale and current, our
policy requires thal you inform us of any changes in the name or ownership of your organization or the health
care services you provide,

Sincercly,

foon. Sttt fin B PR

Ann Scott Blouin, RN, Ph.D,
Executive Vice President
Accreditation and Certification Operations

ATTACHMENT 11
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April 27, 2011
Re: # 329]
CCN: #140211
Program: Hospital
Accreditation Expiration Date: May 05, 2014
Tom Wright
President
Delnor- Comununity Hospital
300 Randall Roact

Geneva, [[linois 60134
Dear Mr. Wright:

This letter confinns that your January 31, 2011 - February 04, 2011 unannounced fuff resurvey was
conducted for the purposes of assessing compliance with the Medicare conditions for hospitals through
The Joint Commission’s deemed status survey process.

Based upon the submission of your evidence of standards compliance on April 07, 2011 and Apnil 15,
2011, the arcas of deficiency listed below have been removed. The Joint Commission is granting your
organization an accreditation decision of Accredited with an effective date of February 05, 2011, We
congrafulate you on your effective reselution of these deficicncies.

§482.24 Condition of Participation: Medical Record Services
§482.41 Condition of Participation: Physical Environment

The Joint Commission is also recommending your organization for continued Medicare certilication
effcctive April 15, 201 1. Piease note that the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)
Regional Office (RO) mnakes the final determination regarding your Medicare participation and the
effcetive date of participation in accordance with the regulations at 42 CFR 489.13. Your organization is
encouraged {o share a copy of this Medicare recommnendation letter with your State Survey Agency.

This recommendation also applies to the following location(s):

Delor Cominunity Hospital Home Health Services
964 North 5th Avenue, Building C, Saint Charles, 1L, 60174

Delnor Corununity Hospital
d/bfa Delnor Hospital
300 Randall Road, Geneva, 1L, 60134

Delnor Community Hospital Breas{ Healtl Center
3310 W. Main Street, Suite 700, Saint Charles, II., 60174

wwww johteonunissien.oryg Headquartyra
) Oue Renaissance Boulevard
Oakdrook Tesrace, 11 GOI181

630 792 5000 Virice
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Deftior Glen (Rehab) Building
975 N. 5th Ave, Apantment £7, Saint Charles, {L, 60174

Detnor Reference [Lab Patient Service Center
2900 Fexfield Dr., Suite 306, Saint Charles, IL, 60174

Delnor Rehab Services
964 North Stk Ave., Bldg. C, Saint Charles, IL, 60174

Delnor Rehab Services (Oulpatient), Geneva IL
296 Delnor Dnive Suite 201, Geneva, 1L, 60134

Diabetes Education, Geneva L
296 Delnor Drive, Suite 201, Geneva, 1L, 60134

We direct your attention to somne important Joint Commisston policics. First, your Medicare reporl is
publicly accessible as required by the Joint Commission’s agreement with the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. Second, Joint Commission policy requires that you inform us of any changes in the
name or ownership of your organization, or health care services you provide.

Sincerely,

fq’h—v& gﬂf‘?" 6(.,. i fe\‘\J' p'\b

Ann Scott Blouin, RN, Ph.D.
Executive Vice President
Accredilation and Certification Operations

cc: CMS/Central Office/Survey & Certification Group/Division of Acule Care Services
CMS/Regional Office 5 /Survey and Cenification Staff

wrwW W o b te oBuTHS HIGH .G Headquartors
One Renaissance Boulevand
Oakbraok Tarrace, (16018}
630792 5600 Voice

/%
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PURPOSE OF PROJECT

The purposes of the proposed project are to provide expanded capacity to address
the demand for intensive care unit (ICU) and inpatient acute mental illness (AMI) beds,
to relocate the hospital’s outpatient behavioral health programs to a site that i1s more
proximate to the AMI unit, and to provide addition physician office space and
administrative space on the hospital campus. By doing so, access to the services
identified above will be improved for area residents, and as such, the health care and well

being of market area will be improved.

The ability to undertake this project, é,nd primarily the non-ICU portions of the
project, is now available to the hospital with the completion of its bed tower project and
the vacating of space in the Center building resulting from the relocation of beds. in
addition, the relocating of the hospital’s outpatient behavioral health programs into the
hospital proper will improve the synergy between the inpatient and outpatient behavioral

health programs and low a sharing of selected staff and facilities.

The service area for the proposed project consists primarily of western DuPage
County, and eastern Kane County. The table below tdentifies the combined patient origin

for Central DuPage Hospital’s FY2011 ICU and AMI admissions.

ATTACHMENT 12
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ZIP Cumulative
Community Code % %

WHEATON 60187 11.90% 11.90%
CAROL STREAM 60188 10.80% 22.60%
WEST CHICAGO 60185 9.60% 32.20%
GLEN ELLYN 680137 7.30% 39.40%
WHEATON 60189 5.30% 44.80%
BARTLETT 60103 3.70% 48.50%
GLENDALE HEIGHTS 60139  3.60% 52.10%
WINFIELD 60190 3.20% 55.30%
BLOOMINGDALE 60108 3.10% 58.40%
WARRENVILLE 60555 2.30% 60.70%
LOMBARD 60148 2.10% 62.80%
SAINT CHARLES 60174 2.00% 64.80%
HANOVER PARK 60133 1.80% 66.70%
NAPERVILLE 60563 1.40% 68.10%
GENEVA 60134 1.30% 69.40%
BATAVIA 60510 1.30% 69.40%
ROSELLE 60172 1.00% 70.40%
others < 1.00% 29.60% 100.00%

Two primary problems will be addressed by the proposed project. The first is
extraordinarily high utilization of the hospital’s AMI unit, which has exceeded 100%
during each of the past two years, coupled with the elimination of AMI beds in the
planning area. The second problem is the historical utilization of the hospital’s ICU beds,
which has also exceeded the IHFSRB’s target utilization level during each of the past two

years, and which is expected to increase, as discussed in ATTACHMENT 15.

The proposed project will ailow the hospital to reduce its utilization rate in these

two areas to levels slightly in excess of the JHFSRB’s target levels, and the success in

ATTACHMENT 12




doing so will be measurable by reduced utilization rates, immediately following the

project’s completion
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ALTERNATIVES

The goals of the proposed project are: 1) to increase the hospital’s ICU bed
capacity, 2) to increase the hospital’s acute mental illness (AMI) bed capacity, 3) to
facilitate a greater synergy between the hospital’s inpatient and outpatient behavioral
health programs, and 4) to address the need for additional physicians’ office space on
campus. It is the applicants’ belief that the project presented in this application meets all

three of the goals in the most cost-effective manner possible.
With the exception of the physicians’ office component, the proposed project can
be viewed as two projects, an ICU expansion and the expansion of the hospital’s

behavioral health programs. As a result, alternatives to both were evaluated.

Behavioral Health Programs

A number of alternative avenues to address the behavioral health program’s
facility-related needs were evaluated, with the overall goal being to provide a reasonable

proximity relationship between the inpatient and outpatient programs.

One alternative considered was the construction of a separate behavioral health
pavilion, attached to the hospital, to house all of the inpatient an outpatient behavioral

health programs. Because the hospital structure occupies such a great percentage of the

ATATCHMENT 13
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site, erecting a pavilion could not be undertaken without elimination or- relocation of
much needed parking capacity, a clear drawback to this aiternative. This alternative was
dismissed because of the availability of vacated space within the Center building. In
addition, the pavilion would require 2 minimum of 40-45000 square feet, with an

associated construction cost of $15-§16M, plus the cost of relocating parking.

A second alternative would be to replace the building on the perimeter of the
hospital campus, currently used for outpatient behavioral health programs with a
psychiatric hospital to provide both the inpatient and outpatient programs, That facility,
in order to meet licensure requirements, would likely require 60-65,000 square feet, and

have a construction cost of $23-25M.

Both of the alternatives identified above are viewed by the applicants as being
impractical, because of cost as well as the available alternative of simply renovating

unused space within the existing hospital.

Last, with the decision to locate the behavioral health programs currently in the
satellite building into the hospital, the potential locations within the hospital were
evaluated, and a decision was made to continue to house the existing 15-bed AMI unit on

“the first floor of the North building to avoid the costs associated with relocating the unit,
but to locate the remaining inpatient beds and outpatient programs on the third, fourth
and fifth floors of the Center building, allowing easy staff an patient movement from one

physical component to another.

ATATCHMENT 13
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ICU

Two alternatives to the proposed ICU component of the project were evaluated.
The first alternative involved combining one of the existing 16-bed adult I[CUs with the
proposed ICU on the third, fourth, or fifth floors of the hospital’s Center building in
currently vacant space. This alternative was rejected for two primary reasons. First, the
available Center building locations are somewhat isolated from functions that should be
proximate to the ICU such as surgery. Second, for operational reasons, a 30-bed ICU

was viewed as unmanageable and impractical.

The second alternative considered was the development of a third adult ICU
through new construction, likely atop one of the hospital’s existing buildings. This
alternative was dismissed because of the cost associated with new construction and the

availability of usable vacant space

There are four primary reasons for the selection of the proposed project over any
of the alternatives. Those reasons are 1) the desire of the applicants (as well as the
THFSRB) to use existing space before new construction is undertaken; 2) the availability
of suitable space to house each of the programs within the existing hospital; 3) the cost
effectiveness of the proposed project over the alternatives; and 4) the proposed project’s
ability to address all of the project’s goals with minimal disruption to the hospital’s

ongoing operation.
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The applicants did not view there to be any differences between the alternatives

evaluated, either in terms of accessibility or the quality of services to be provided.

The success of the project will be immediately measurable upon completion of the
project through an anticipated reduced need to hold patients in need of an ICU bed in the
Emergency Department, a reduced need for the hospital to go on ambulance “bypass” due
to a lack of ICU beds, and a reduced need to house AMI patients on a medical/surgical

unit because of a lack of available AMI beds.

ATATCHMENT 13

5¢




SIZE OF PROJECT

All of the services addressed through this project, both clinical and non-clinical,
are being addressed through the renovation of existing space. As a result, the space
allocated to the individual functions is dictated, to a large extent, by the configuration and
amount of space available. The result is department designs that are not as efficient as
one would anticipate with newly designed space. Given the desire to use existing space
rather than address space needs through new construction, the space allocated to the
individual functions/departments is appropriate and not excessive; and only one function,

ICU, exceeds the IHFSRB-developed design standard.

1. ICU

A 14-bed ICU will be developed in close proximity to the surgical suite, in
vacated space on the second floor of the Center building, This unit incorporates design
practices taken from leading hospitals, such as the Cleveland Clinic, which were toured

by hospital representatives as part of the planning for this unit.

The area to be used originally housed the hospital’s imaging department, and the
configuration of the space—including window and utilities shaft placement—require

significant design compromises to eliminate the need for the costly full demolition of

ATTACHMENT 14
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the area and the relocation of windows for use as an ICU. As a result, while a design
without impediments would result in all patient rooms being tdentically designed and
configured, the impediments to be incorporated into the design result in seven different
sizes of patient rooms, averaging 278 sf, but with the largest being 320 sf. The design
goal to provide 360° access nevertheless has been accomplished in twelve of the patient
rooms. The primary cause for the space that exceeds the THFSRB’s standards,
however, is the facility impediments associated with the location space to be used,
which was selected primarily because of its close proximity to the surgical suite.
Among those impediments are window locations, vertical utilities shafts, column
locations, and an irregular shape. Specifically, design efficiency is compromised
because a [4-bed ICU would normally be designed with a single nurses station,
medication area, clean utility room, and soiled utility room. Because of the licensure
requirements, each patient room must have a window and it 1s desirable to provide a
direct line of sight from the nurses station to each bed. The configuration of the space
to be used (particularly window placement) dictates the placement of patient rooms,
resulting in the need for three nurses stations. Also because of the configuration, two
medication stations, clean utility rooms and soiled utility rooms need to be provided.
Last, and also because of the configuration of the space, a 400sf internal corridor is

required to access support areas within the ICU.

The newly designed ICU, due wvirtually exclusively to the design issues and
impediments identified above, will provide 880 sf per bed, compared to the IHFSRB’s

target of 685 sf per bed.
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2. Acute Mental lllness (AMI) Unit

Minor renovation will be done to the hospital’s 15-bed AMI unit located on the

first floor of the North building, and 11 beds will be developed through the renovation of

existing Center building space. The renovation to the existing unit will be “cosmetic” in

nature, without the moving of any walls. The 11-bed unit will be developed through

extensive renovation of 5,378 on the fourth floor of the Center building, resulting in 489

sf per bed, consistent with the JHFSRRB’s target of 660 sf per bed.

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE
AMI (11 beds)
ICU (14 beds)

PROPOSED STATE
DGSF STANDARD
5,378 6,160
12,325 8,590

MET

DIFFERENCE STANDARD?
(782) YES
2,735 NO

S7
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PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

The proposed project is limited to two clinical services for which the THFSRB
maintains utilization targets, and the applicants anticipate that the utilization targets will
be surpassed by the second year following the project’s compietion. The two project
components are: 1) the increasing of thé acute mental illness (AMI) service from fifteen

to 26 beds, and 2) the expanding of the ICU service from 32 to 46 beds.

Acute Mental Illness

The hospital’s existing AMI unit is limited to fifteen (15) beds. As identified to
the IDPH by Central DuPage Hospital through its 2009 and 2010 Arnual Hospital
Questionnaire filings, during each of the past two years Central DuPage Hospital has
provided a volume of AMI services that has forced it to locate AMI patients on
medical/surgical units, because no beds have been available on the AMI unit. This
circumstance is documented in the attached copies of filings with the IDPH which show
that in 2009 1,178 AMI patient days of care were provided on the hospital’s
medical/surgical units, and in 2010 1,884 AMI patient days of care were provided on the
hospital’s medical/surgical units. Because of the design of the ITDPH Hospital Profile,
which uses the Questionnaire as its source document, occupancy rates identified on the

Profile cannot exceed 100%. In reality, Central DuPage Hospital’s 2009 AMI occupancy
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rate was 121.5%, and its actual 2010 AMI occupancy rate was 134.4%. This anomaly

has been discussed with IDPH staff,

The table below reflects actual historical AMI utilization at Central DuPage
Hospital, as well as projected utilization, through the second year following the project’s

completion.

Dept./ Historical PROJECTED STATE MET
Service Utilization UTILIZATION STANDARD STANDARD?
(Patient Days)
(TREATMENTS) YEAR1 YEAR 2
ETC.
AMI 7,359 8,350 8,540 7,756+ Yes

In 2010 7,359 AMI patient days of care were provided, resuiting in an average

daily census of 20.2 patients, supporting a need for 26 beds.

Attached are letters from twelve area psychiatrists, indicating that had the
proposed beds been available, they would have cumulatively admitted an additional 364
patients. Assuming an average length of stay of 6.0 days (with the vast majority of the
incremental patients anticipated to be either adolescents or geropsychiatry patients), the
364 incremental admissions would have resulted in 2,184 additional AMI patient days, or
a total of 9,543 patient days, supporting a need for 31 beds, compared to the proposed 26

beds.
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ICU

Central DuPage Hospital currently operates two adult intensive care units and a
pediatric unit (PICU), totaling 32 beds. With the approval of the proposed project, the
hospital will develop a third ICU. One of the existing ICUs will be designated for use by
neurology and neurosurgery patients, and the “new” ICU, located adjacent to the surgical
suite, will be designated as the surgical ICU. As identified in the 2009 and 2010 IDPH
Hospital Profiles, CDH provided 19,134 ICU days of patient care during that two-year
period, resulting in an average daily census (ADC) of 26.21 patients. During that two-
year period, the hospital’s ICU beds operated at an 81.9% occupancy rate, compared to
the IDPH target rate of 60%. Fourteen additional ICU beds ar¢ proposed to be added,

increasing the hospital’s complement to 46 beds.

In recent years, CDH has developed a specialty in the neurosciences, operating as
The Neurosciences Institute at Central DuPage Hospital. The Neurosciences Institute has
been designated a National Primary Stroke Center by the Joint Commission, and is a
leader in the western suburbs in innovative care for complex and common conditions of
the brain and spine, including stroke, epilepsy, brain tumors, spine surgery, pediatric
neurological disorders, and spinal cord and pituitary gland tumors. The Neurosciences
Institute has recruited and assembled a broad spectrum of medical, surgical and
interventional neuro-radiology specialists, with 39 physicians in these specialties
currently on staff, six of which have joined within the past two years. Eleven of these

physicians are employed on a full-time basis by CDH.

é’ 2 ATTACHMENT 15




As a result of the clinical expertise assembled at the Neurosciences Institute, CDH
has become a primary referral site, particularly for patients from other hospitals m the
western suburbs; and the referrals from other hospitals have had a dramatic impact on the
demand for ICU beds at CDH. Since April 2009, CDH has developed formal transfer
agreements specifically for neurological diseases and neurosurgery with seven area
hospitals. During the six-month period ending December 31, 2011 those six hospitals
referred a total of 183 patients to the Neurosciences Institute, many of which required
admission to the ICU, either upon transfer or following surgery. In total, during that six-
month period 220 (183 + 37) patient from hospitals without a formal service-specific
transfer agreement) patients were transferred to the Neurosciences Institute from other
area hospitals, and that transfer volume, when annualized, represents a 25% increase over

the previous 12-month period.

In FY 2010 263 neurology or neurosurgical patients were transferred from
another hospital to an ICU at CDH, with that number increasing by 33.8% during the past
year to 352 patients. The average length of stay of these patients in an ICU bed has been
3.0 days. While the tremendous growth rate 1s not anticipated to continue, growth is
anticipated through 2015, the second year foilowing the proposed project’s completion,
For planning purposes, the growth rate is projected m to 10% annually during the
next two years (FY12 and FY13), and to only 5% annually, the following two years,

which will coincide with the first two years of the additional bed’s availability. Using

those anticipated growth rates, an average Jength of stay reduced to 2.9 days, and the

2009-2010 average daily census of 26.21 patients (consistent with IHFSRB practice), 117
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incremental admissions are anticipated in 2015, resulting in an incremental ADC of 0.93
patients, or a total ADC of 27.14 patients (0.93+26.21), supporting 46 1CU beds, based

on the IHFSRB’s 60% target utilization rate.

The proposed 46 ICU beds is viewed as a conservative bed complement because
the projected increase in demand is based exclusively on anticipated increase in
neurology and neurosurgery referrals, and does not incorporate additional “non-neuro”
admissions resulting from the aging of the population in the hospital’s service area. In
addition, scheduled neurosurgical procedures are typically performed early in the week,

resulting in even higher average daily census’ Monday through Wednesday.

The table below reflects actual historical ICU utilization at Central DuPage

Hospital as well as projected utilization, through the second year following the project’s

completion,
Dept./ Historical PROJECTED STATE MET
Service Utilization UTILIZATION STANDARD STANDARD?
{Patient Days)
{TREATMENTS) YEAR1 YEAR2
ETC.
ICU 9,048 9,855 9,906 g,856+ Yes
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Allocation of Patient Days
Calendar Year 2009
Purpose: Allocate days that exceed maxirmum aliowed on 10PH Survey.

Autharized Hospital Bed Capacity 15
Days 365

Age Totat Allowable Allocate Days Revised Acute
MS DRG Grouping Category Actual Days  Days Differance to MedSurg  Mental lliness
Acute Mental lliness 0-14 *e s TS T rry
Acute Mental lliness 15-44 3,782 G684 3,068
Acute Mental lliness 45-64 2,229 416 1,813

Acute Mental lliness 65-74 272 32 240
Acute Mental lllnass 75 up 400 46 354
Total 6,653 \x 5,475 I'ILSF/ 1,178 5,475

e

bhge Total Allowahle Mllocate Days  Revised
MS DRG Grouping Categorty Actual Days  Days Difference to MedSurg  MedSurg
MEdSUrg 0_14 "k L1 L3 0 "k
MedSurg 15-44 7,180 R8s 7,854
MedSurg 45-64 16,627 415 17,043
MedSurg 65-74 9,743 32 9,775
(™ Wedsurg 75 up 16,964 46 17,010
(~yotal 50,514 1,178 51,692
T
For the CY 2009 Survey Pedintric Utifization exceeded maximum allowed duoys:
Authorized Hosplta! Bed Capaclty 10
Days 385 .
Age Total Allowable Allocate Days
M5 DRG Grouping Category Acteual Days Days Differenca 10 MadSurg Ravised Peds
Pedlatrics 0-14 3,783 3,650 133 133 3,650

Age Total Allowable Allocate Days Revised

Ms DRG Grouping Category Actual Days  Days Difference to MedSurg  Medsurg

Ri=llocatad to MedSurg 15-44 7,864 133 7.957
]
Fal MedSurg Totals Submitted:

Surg 0-14 -
VE{isurg 15-44 7,997
wEtisurg 45-64 17,043
MEHSurg 6574 9,775
MedSurg 73 up 17,010
Total Calendar 2069 Medical Surglcal Utllization 51,825

** Reported under Peds Utilization



Acute Mental Hiness Allocation of Days

Calendar Year 2010

Purpose: Allocate doys that exceed maximum allowed on IDPH Survey.

Authorized Hospital Bed Capacity
Days

M5 DRG Grouping

15
365

Allowable
Age Total Days |

Category Actual Days % of Total on Survey

Allocate Days Revised Acute

Difference to MedSurg

Mental Illness

Acute Mental lllness 0-14 *x ** e ek L b
Acute Mental lllness 15-44 4,190 56.9% 1,073 3,117
Acute Mental [liness 45-64 2,550 34.7% 653 1,897
Acute Mental tiness 65-74 359 4.9% 92 267
Acute Mental iliness 75 up 260 3.5% _ﬂf_\ 66 194
Total 7,359 100.0% fff,ins 1,834 J 1,884 5,475
M
Medsurg 0_14 ok LR J L3 3 wk (1] L1
MedSurg 15-44 6,538 1,073 7,611
' MedSurg 45-64 16,303 653 16,956
MedSurg B5-74 10,502 92 10,594
MedSurg 75 up 16,342 66 16,408
Total 49,685 1,884 51,569
&~

k" Reported under Peds Utilization

¢l INHWHOVLLY

Central DuPage Hospltal Confidential



Name (print): f)ﬂ U L/ Nﬁ W [ Z N(E@.

A

Specialty: {5 IMMC r°f7c’f’f/ﬂ7(”w7

To Whom It May Concern:

I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year I admitted or referred approximately {4/ l 0 patients to the followmg ‘hospitals in
the western and northwestern suburbs:

Liwsgn clhiks Hostirpe

CLLN DKy HeSAIC

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had

beds been available, T estimate that I would have admitted or referred an_additionai ]ﬂ patients
to Central Du;?age Hospital,

Appr.:oximately _ g% of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital. ‘

This information is correct, to the best of my lmowledge and these patients have not been
used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

OFFICIAL SEAL

SUSAN M BOVE
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINGIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:10/01/%2

T15
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Name (primt): e ha Menoh
Date: 3= Z-U
Speciatty: __ Clni il Feye hz‘a-}r\?

To Whom It May Concern:

I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year I admitted or referred approximately patients to the following hospitals in
the western and northwestern suburbs: '

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that T would have admitted or referred an additional i patients

to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately __ % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage

Hospital.,

This information is correct, to ﬁxe best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

‘rm ’/({ '

OFFICIAL SEAL
SUSAN M Bove

NOTARY p mmﬁ
My comr#saggﬁ% Rr;'s:z,c;mwuzs,1

Sincerely,

W notarized:

iF




Name (print): 16&?‘4 l{/u‘l mA i

Specialty: PS'U('/A-"“"W”P
v J
To Whom It May Concern:
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

. Last year I admitted or referred approximately 2 patients to the following hospitals in
the western and northwestern suburbs; '

Lme/A
Shrtamprad

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional 2.5 patients
to Central DuPage Hospital,

Approximately §9 % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital., '

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been
used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

@WV&VW&Q_\ notarized:
! ,. C;‘f”“
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Name (print): ¢-y. 0’ %K(Eﬂ/

Specialty: i) SNER (AT F\\{

To Whom It May Concemn:

I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.
X -
. : |
Last year I admitted or referred approximatelymatients to the following hospitals in

the western and nerthwestern suburbs; .

Qeverape Y, 7 ﬁ‘érél

Had the proposed. gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional 3 O patients

to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately §© % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital. '

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely, .
M N} | /)j ' Y e notarized: _ ’ .
N
$ SUSAN M BOVE :
b NOTARY PUBLIC - §T4 -
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Name (print): 6 Xima \gl beh
f Date: 3 / 2 / I
Specialty: P sy chiakry
' I

To Whom It May Concern:
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year [ admitted or referred approximately 20 patients to the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:

— qﬂ;c\/?am Hos’lpﬂ«/_;
“ dondewbakc .
~ Wi Boffme

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additiona] ZQ patients
to Central DuPage Hospital,

Approximately ?5/% of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital.

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” thq establishment or expansion of other programs,
Sincerely,

\?MQ!Q‘\L_ ' notarized:

/L(;:ﬁw{ e
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vy KEN Prhlees  mD
. U
Specialty: PS VC Hn A(TJ’Q,LZ

To Whom It May Concern: .
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

21 |
Last year I admitted or referrod approximately @ patients to[the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:

Lin) DEN OAKS

ALEXAN  BReTHERS

Gled oAaK

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an_additional 7 patients |
to Central DuPage Hospital. \ |

Approximately ?(2 % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPsge
Hospital, '

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been
used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

OFFICIAL SEAL

SUSAN M BOVE

NOTARY PU;EIC ~STATE OF LLLINGIS
MMISSIONEARERVRDE!

MY COMMI
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Name (print): '0{& /\)M M 0
Date: j’/"/“ o
speciay:_Lh M QMM Mft V‘?d‘@?

S g 4=

To Whom It May Concern:
[ am in support of Central DuPage Hospital's plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year I admitted or referred approximately OZ" patients to the following hospitals in
the western and northwestern suburbs:

frves Mecey & B

Alexon éw .

| Ao Oufed W

lawrd g [+t ol W

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and s.dolesccnt programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that T would have admitted or referred an additional 015 patients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately ?a % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital.

This inforimation is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been
used to “support” the establishment or.expansion of other programs.

«LM,Q, notarized: 5}@%%-«_3/51//;
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MY COMMISSIONEXPIRES: 001112

Sincerely,




Name (print): N;Gﬂ‘ "Lﬁj QL‘ for, M
!
Datezs/lj‘?o“
Specialty: fgf;tj&ﬁ\rdﬁ(‘-" " A’lj MU"

To Whom It May Concern:
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year [ admitted or referred approximately 22 patients to the following hospitals in

the western. and northrwestern suburbs:

(__‘v\(ﬂ(tﬂ OJ’LG

M?&} M)S'P ‘1(04\
Aoy o Bt

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds boeen available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional % Chatients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximatelyﬁ % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital.

This information is correct, to the best of m‘y knowleﬂge, and these patients have not been
used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs,

WL S K
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Specialty:
To Whom It May Concern:
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add |5 psychiatric beds.

Last year I admitted or referred approximately } patients to the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:
isdolg Mo,sﬁﬁfgﬁl

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operatipnal, and had
beds been available, I estimate that 1 would have admitted or referred an additionalL patients
to Central DuPage Hospital. '

Approximately ;Q % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital. ‘

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these péﬁents have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

WO WA W e RN Y
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Name (print): BA‘N?‘;J’{ A (/F\'ﬁ/\ ﬂ/)

, _ GHERD
Specialty: j)S‘rtHM 12 //hﬁé/ Cf’!@f\’c//gyw’q rzy
To Whom It May Concem:
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

N . v
Last year T admitted or referred approximately |23 paticnts fo the following hospitals in
the western and northwestern suburbs:

Linden OBIS

Glen  Ohres

Deexrn  Bitos

é-ZJDA _EQMA'IZ{ AN

Had the proposed gero-psychiairy and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional ﬁQ patients
to Central DuPage Hospital. '

Approximately £0 % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital. ‘

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sinceraly,

4

4 v W) wotarized: &4&4..-—. /? %&g
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NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF LLINOIS
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Name (print): [SEad. A—-bgﬁ—g?
Date: \3:/ :?‘l{ {/
Specialty: 1059 CAHAT EJL( ,

To Whom It May Concem:
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital's plans fo add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last vear I admitted or referred approximately Lo patients to the following hospitals in
the western and nortliwestern suburbs:

LiRperNy  daAKS

A|Q><.tlow %T/LSM

Had the proposed gero-psychistry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been avatlable, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional &Fpatients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately 1o % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital,

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

st Monrs s San A oo

QFFICIAL SEAL
SUSAN M BOVE

d
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE @E(D! NT 15
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 1000111 :!T
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Nams (print): NADEF A HUusS N
Speciaity: Py et A |Q/y’
To Whom It May Concem: 3/ ? / { !

lamin sa;':port of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans {o add 15 psychiatric beds.

P o
Last year I admitted or reforrad approximately _ patients to the followlag hospitals in
the western and northwestern suburbs:

Centrl Pv Page fospitrl {primary)
Livken Oaks thep |

Plotn Montal oo fln ot

@len 0ales %OSP:hL

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs beon operational, and had
heds been avaifablo, T estimate that I would have admitted or referved gn additional 5¢ patients

to Central DuPage Hogpltal,

Approximately ? G0 % of my patlents reside within 30 minutes of Centrel DuPage
Hospital,

This information i3 correct, to the best of my knowledge, and those patients have not been
used to “support” tho establishment or expansion of other programs,

Smicerely,

: ”Zi VL0 BEM RV S, notanzed &M‘—-—ﬁ/‘((ﬂ

‘ GFE}CIAL SEAL
L
! Su SAN M BOVE

i JMM

ATT

1




ICU BEDS
SERVICE TO PLANNING AREA RESIDENTS

Central DuPage Hospital’s ICU units have traditionally served primarily residents
of western DuPage and eastern Kane Counties, and that will continue to be the case,
following the completion of the proposed project. The table on the following page
identifies the hospital’s ICU patient origin for the twelve-month period ending June 30,
2011. The origin of patients being admitted to CDH’s ICU is not anticipated to change
appreciably as a result of this project, and as demonstrated by historical patient origin, the
hospital’s ICUs serve primarily residents of the western suburban communities

surrounding the hospital.
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ZIP
Code
60187
60188
60185
60137
60189
60103
60108
605556
60139
60180
60133
60148
60174
60510
60134
60172
60123
60506
60175
60115
60515
60178
60101
60177
60563
60516
60542
60118
60119
60120
60505

Cumulative

Community % %
Wheaton 13.5% 13.5%
Carol Stream 10.3% 23.7%
West Chicago 9.7% 33.4%
Glen Ellyn 7.1% 40.5%
Wheaton 4.6% 45.1%
Bartlett 3.7% 48.8%
Bloomingdale 2.8% 51.5%
Warrenville 2.8% 54.3%
Glendale Heights 27% 57 0%
Winfield 26% £9.6%
Hanover Park 2.6% 62.2%
.ombard 2.5% 64.7%
Saint Charles Z21% 66.8%
Batavia 1.5% 68.2%
Geneva 0.8% 69.1%
Roselle 0.9% 70.0%
Elgin 0.9% 70.0%
Aurora 0.8% 70.9%
Saint Charles 0.8% 71.7%
DeKalb 0.7% 72.4%
Downers Grove 0.7% 73.2%
Sycamore 0.7% 73.9%
Addison 0.6% 74 5%
South Elgin 0.6% 75.2%
Naperville 0.6% 75.8%
Downers Grove 0.6% 76.4%
North Aurora 0.68% 76.9%
DeKalb 0.5% 77.4%
Elburn 0.5% 77.9%
Elgin 0.5% 78.5%
Aurcra 0.5% 79.0%
areas with <0.5% 21.0% 100.0%

§&
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MALDISTRIBUTION—ICU

Central DuPage Hospital (CDH} is located in IDPH-designated Planning Area A-
05, which, based on the most recent Update to the IDPH’s nventory, has a calculated
“need” for forty additional ICU beds. As a result, the proposed addition of fourteen ICU

beds to Central DuPage Hospital cannot result in a maldistribution.

The 2010 population for the 45-ZipCode area located within thirty minutes of
CDH was 1,491,421 based data provided by Environmental Systems Research Institute,
Inc. (ESRI). That area generally extends north into Hoffman Estates, south into

Bolingbrook, east into Elmhurst, and west to Elburn.

The table below identifies each IDPH-licensed hospital located within thirty

minutes of CDH that provides ICU services.
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Adjusted*
Drive Time Distance
Hospital l.ocation {minutes) {miles)
Rush Copley Hospital Aurora 21 13.7
Provena Mercy Center Aurora 21 14.2
Delnor Hospital Geneva 18 12.6
Provena St. Joseph Hospital Elgin 29 18.6
Sherman Hospital Elgin 30 228
Adventist Bolingbrook Hosp. Bolingbrook 29 21.8
Edward Hospital Naperville 17 8.7
Advocate Good Samaritan Hosp. Downers Grove 22 15.1
Adventist Hinsdale Hospital Hinsdale 30 20.6
St. Alexius Medical Center Hoffman Estates 26 12.8
Adventist Glen Oaks Med. Ctr. Glendale Heights 13 8.2
Alexian Brothers Medical Cr. Elk Grove Village 23 16.1
Elmhurst Memorial Hospital Elmhurst 22 13.6
*adjustment made per IHFSRB guideline

As a result of the demand analysis provided in ATTACHMENT 15, it is not
anticipated that the proposed project will cause any other hospital’s ICU occupancy rate
to drop below the IHFSRB target rate, nor will it have any adverse impact on any hospital

having an ICU that is not currently operating at the target rate.
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SERVICE DEMAND—ICU

As Of February 1, 2012 the Update to the IDPH’s /nventory identified a need for
40 additional ICU beds in Central DuPage Hospital’s IDPH-designated planning area.

This project proposes an addition of 14 ICU beds,

Consistent with the documentation provided in the hospital’s 2009 and 2010
IDPH Hospital Profiles, Central DuPage Hospital (CDH) has operated its 32 authorized
ICU beds well above the IHFSRB’s 60% target occupancy rate for the past two years.

During 2009 the occupancy rate was 87.3% and in 2010 the occupancy rate was 78.5%.

The proposed fourteen additional beds are necessary to reduce the experienced
high utilization and to address future demand for ICU beds. Based on the average of
2009/2010 utilization, twelve of the fourteen additional beds are needed to reduce the

hospital’s current ICU occupancy rate to the IHFSRB’s target level.

Please refer to ATTACHMENT 15 for a detailed discussion of projected demand,
which 1s based solely upon historical ufilization and a modest increase in the transfer of
patients from other area hospitals to CDH’s Neurosciences Institute. Due to the nature of
ICU patients (as opposed to medical/surgical, acute mental illness, or rehabilitation

patients), 1t 1s impractical to attempt to secure letters from individual physicians that
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would identify projected referrals/admissions in any reasonable fashion. Rather, and as
discussed in ATTACHMENT 15, projected referrals are based on projected transfers of
patients to the Neurosciences Institute at a growth rate that is only a fraction of the

historical growth in transfers,
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STAFFING AVAILABILITY—ICU

The applicants do not anficipate any difficuity in recruiting exceptional and
qualified staff for the proposed ICU. Cadence Health and Central DuPage Hospital enjoy
very positive reputations as places to work, and both CDH and its sister hospital, Delnor
Hospital, have been awarded Magnet designation by the American Nurses Credentialing
Center. Positions in the ICU will imtially be offered to qualified Cadence Health
employees, with any unfilled positions bemng addressed through advertisements in
newspapers of general circulation in the area, as well as in professional journals. Unit
personnel will be named or hired 45 to fifieen days prior to the unit’s opening, to ensure

proper orientation, and a safe and seamless opening of the unit.
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PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS—ICU

With the opening of the proposed 14-bed ICU, Central DuPage Hospital will
operate a total of 46 ICU beds, well in excess of the IDPH-designated minimum of four

beds.
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II'CADENCE
[A] HEATH

February 20, 2012

Illinois Health Facilities

and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, 1L 62761

To Whom It May Concern:

Please be advised that it is fuily anticipated that Central DuPage Hospital’s intensive care
(ICU) beds will reach the IHFSRB’s target occupancy level by the second year following
the proposed project’s completion, and that they will maintain that level.

Sincerely,

/714M e x\_

Michael Vivoda
President

h e e e e T
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; OFFICIAL SEAL

$ SUSAN M BOVE
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINGIS

) MYCOMMISSION EXPIRES:10/01/12 ¢
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25 N. winfield Road
winfield, llincis 60190

T.630.933.1600
TTY for the hearing

F 7 impaired 630.933.4833
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SERVICE TO PLANNING AREA RESIDENTS

Central DuPage Hospital is located in Planning Area A-5 (DuPage County) for

acute mental illness (AMI) services, and is located within a 10-minute drive of Planning

Area A-12 (southern Kane County).

The table on the following page identifies each ZIP Code area/community that
contributed a minimum of 1% of Central DuPage Hospital’s AMI admissions during
2009. As evidence that Central DuPage’s AMI unit provides services primarily to
residents of the planning area, of the 21 identified ZIP Code areas, 17 are located within
Planning Area A-5, with those ZIP Code areas alone accounting for 63.2% of the 2009

admisstons to the hospital’s AMI unit.
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Community
WHEATON

CAROL STREAM
WEST CHICAGO
GLEN ELLYN
GLENDALE HEIGHTS
WHEATON
WINFIELD
WARRENVILLE
SAINT CHARLES
BARTLETT
LOMBARD
GENEVA
BLOOMINGDALE
HANOVER PARK
ADDISON
ELMHURST
VILLA PARK
BATAVIA
NAPERVILLE
ROSELLE

DOWNERS GROVE

ZIP Code areas contributing < 1%

ZIP
Code
60187

60188

60185

60137

60139

60189

60190

60555

60174

60103

60148

60134

60108

60133

60101

60126

60181

60510

60540

60172

60515

Patients
188

142

123

80

48

43

43

40

37

35

29

26

25

24

21

18

18

18

13

16

15

%
13.2%

10.0%

8.6%

5.6%

3.4%

3.0%

3.0%

2.8%

2.6%

2.5%

2.0%

1.8%

1.8%

1.7%

1.5%

1.3%

1.3%

1.3%

1.3%

1.1%

Cumulative
%
13.2%

23.1%

31.7%

37.4%

40.7%

43.7%

46.7%

49.5%

52.1%

54.6%

56.6%

58.4%

60.2%

61.9%

63.3%

64.6%

65.9%

67.1%

68.4%

69.5%

70.6%

100.0%

f7
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Please refer to the discussion in ATTACHMENT 15 as confirmation that the

project will be providing a necessary health care service.
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SERVICE DEMAND

The applicants propose to expand Central DuPage Hospital’s acute mental illness
{AMI) service from fifteen to 26 beds, and to expand their programmatic commitment to
AMI services from a general, adult-oriented unit to a service that also provides inpatient

adolescent psychiatry and gero-psychiatry programming,.

Central DuPage Hospital’s AMI unit has historically operated far in excess of the
IHFSRB’s 85% target occupancy level. As identified to the IDPH by Central DuPage
Hospital through its 2009 and 2010 Annual Hospital Questionnaire filings, during each
of the past two years Central DuPage Hospital has provided a volume of AMI services
that has forced 1t to locate AMI patients on medical/surgical units, because no beds have
been available on the AMI umit. This circumstance 1s documented in the copies of filings
with the IDPH provided in ATTACHMENT 15, which show that in 2009 1,178 AMI
patient days of care were provided on the hospital’s medical/surgical units, and in 2010
1,884 AMI patient days of care were provided on the hospital’s medical/surgical units.
Because of the design of the IDPH Hospital Profile, which uses the Questionnaire as its
source document, occupancy rates identified on the Profile cannot exceed 100%. In
reality, Central DuPage Hospital’s 2009 AMI occupancy rate was 121.5%, and its actual
2010 AMI oécupancy rate was 134.4%. This anomaly has been discussed with IDPH

staff.
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In 2010 7,359 AMI patient days of care were provided, resulting in an average
daily census of 20.2 patients, supporting a need for 24 beds. 6,653 AMI patient days were
provided at the hospital in 2009, resulting in an average daily census of 18.2 patients,

supporting a need for 22 beds.

Attached are letters from twelve area psychiatrists, indicating that had the
proposed adolescent and gero-psychiatry programs been in place and had beds been
available, they would have cumulatively admitted an additional 364 patients. Assuming
an average length of stay of 6.0 days, the 364 incremental admissions would have
resulted in 2,184 additional AMI patient days, or a total of 9,543 patient days, supporting

a need for 31 beds, compared to the proposed 26 beds.
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Name (print): N: ¢ 'H/\ aﬂaS gL\?c: ‘ M, g
Date: 3/2} 201
Specialty: %3{;&\?&&1% u b

To Whom It May Concern:
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year [ admitted or referred approximately 20 patients to the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:

{_"V‘\QQ(L-. qu,g

M?a@} U\)"\'(l \][c\f\
Megiow Bt

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent program§ been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that 1 would have admitted or referred an additional 3 Ohatients
to Cenfral DuPage Hospital.

Approximatelyq O% of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital.

This information is correct, to the best of miy knowleﬂge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs,

Sincerely,

PIDLL e’ G Ko Sl

OFFICIAL SEAL
SUSAN M BOVE
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
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Name (print): _C# {Ro L EU(
Specialty: PS\] JM\JM

k]

To Whom It May Concern:

I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year I admitted or referred approximately & patients to the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:
Hiwsdaly. Mosﬂoo‘(‘nﬂx

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operatignal, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I wouid have admitted or referred an additional L patients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately EQ % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital. '

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

OFFICIAL SEAL
SUSAN M BOVE

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
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- Name (print): b/’““i?gd‘{ A(/[’WV\ ]

ialty: ]O HATAL Alerro
Specialty: St Y //}5 / Criong (,% Ve ALY
N
To Whom It May Concern; / A
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

. v
Last year 1 admiited or referred approximately [2% patients to the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:

Lindent - OIS

CM#N Ohes

Diéxmn  BitoS

éﬁ?)z'.x g%x—nzr AN

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and edolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional ﬁQ patients

to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately £0 % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital. '

This information is correct, to the best of iny knowledge, and these paiients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

%
[/ i ’ notarized: /?
WGl Sy N
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Name {print): IS?UHL A’ﬁ?pﬂﬁ?

Date: \3'/ ?!ﬂ
Specialty: 'PSE) CAH AT Q,LL

To Whom It May Concern:
[ am in support of Central DuPage Hospital's plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year I adiitted or referred approximately lo patients to the foliowing hospitals in

the western and nortlnvestern suburbs:

LiNDEN  JAKS

Blex)on, %vbm

Had the proposed gero-psychistry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been avatilable, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional CQS_iaaticnts
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately T8 % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital,

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used 10 “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

C)lel, %‘3"”\/‘9 notarized: &Wr——' /( KM
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Namé (print): NADEF N Hus hant fJ

Speoishy; _ PTY e AT R V
3/9 1

To Whom It May Concem:
1am in support of Central DuPage Hospltai’s plans to add §5 psychiatric beds.

oo
Last year 1 admitted or referred approximately patients to the following hospitals in

the westem and northwestorn suburbs:

Centrl Do fage Hospital (primary)
Lwden Oaks thepiir|

Plotn Mot thea it Confer

Llon 0als fospinl

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs beon operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that X would have admitted or raferred an additional 50 patients

to Central DuPage Hogpital,

Approximately ” Q0 % of my patlents reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital.

This information is cormect, 1o the best of my knowledge, and those patlents have not been
used to ""support™ the cstablishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

. '——% V1P BB ﬁvffﬂﬂl; notanzed &M—'—“’/{(g
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Name(prim):f‘a VLINE W (&N

A

Specialty: Zﬂfﬂ?{fﬁlc |’)Jr7[ f“'frm{f‘“}

To Whom It May Concern:

I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year I admitted or referred approximately io patients to the following hospitals in
the western and northwestern suburbs: ‘

Livasay Chidr Hostiipe

CUIN D8KY N SHORLC

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had

beds been available, I estimate that T would have admitted or referred an additional ] patients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately _ S% of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital. “

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been
used to “support” the cstablishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

7 ( ‘
o . notarized:
o oo
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Name (print)y: R ha Menon
Date: 3= Z -l
Specialty: O idd Feye hfa'}'r\};

To Whom It May Concemn:
T am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year 1 admitted or referred approximately patients to the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that 1 would have admitted or referred an additional i patients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage

Hospital.

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have rot been

used to “support” thc; establishment or expansion of other programs,

e K . 3hh

Sincerely,

& o g AAAAN notarized:




Name (print): ﬂd/% l{/{jﬂ’ﬂ/\— ‘,Vl/l}

Specialty: P §LioA I 7’1’01,
/ J
To Whom It May Concern:
[ am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

#

Last year I admitted or referred approximately 2 patients to the following haspitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:

L()«,MW
Shrtampmrd-

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, 1 estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional 2.5 patients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately §9 % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital. ’

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

@Zw/f/’/M/b@\ notarized:
{ | C;;””“‘
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Name (print): -y o BK(EM

specialty: L S CF (AT RY

To Whom It May Concern;
[ am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.
125"
- d -
Last year | admitted or referred approximatelyﬁbatients to the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs:

Cevrabe Yo7 REE

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and hed
beds been available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional 3 patients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately 60 % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage .
Hospital. :

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs,

Sincerely,
beh/;z ])ﬂ,ﬁm W/L(/(/L/\——- notarized: /%
\ v
gy
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Name (print): Sajma—f' let?,h
Date: 3 / 2- / i
Specialty: P 5\! chia h’7)/

To Whom It May Concern:
I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital's plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year I admitted or referred approximately 20 patients to the following hospitals in

the western and northwestern suburbs;

- chl/qamv H‘Oflbfh.f—a'
T dndeOakc .
- Waan Bolfus

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I wonld have admitted or referred an additional 55 patients
to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately ;’5-% of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital.

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these paticnts have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

Sincerely,

\gowugzbqﬁ\, ' notarized:




Name (print}: Ké/\i P‘L’h Lo PS — m D
Specialty: PS V C H’? A/TR, 7

To Whom 1t May Concern:

I am in support of Central DuPage Hospital’s plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

24
Last year I admitted or referred approximately @ patients to the following hospitais in

the western and northwestern suburbs;

Lind DEN OAKS

NLE Xt ad Rl TUeRS

Gled oAl

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that I would have admitted or referred an additional 20 patients

b

to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximately go % of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central! DuPage
Hospital. '

This information is correct, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

et S M Sgu
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Name (print): ""H Qﬂi N 0
Date: }/ 7-/ I |
Specialty: u\:l [&( f M'Mﬁ, Mfr VJ'?[/{J@?

To Whom It May Concern:
[ am in support of Central DuPage Hospital's plans to add 15 psychiatric beds.

Last year [ admitted or referred approximately 910 patients to the following hospitals in
the western and northwestern suburbs:

firves Mmy & Burva

Alexiion ﬂm V‘/W

LA Qs w

W W)/ e bl g7

Had the proposed gero-psychiatry and adolescent programs been operational, and had
beds been available, I estimate that T would have admitted or referred an additional 015 patients

to Central DuPage Hospital.

Approximaiely ? % 9, of my patients reside within 30 minutes of Central DuPage
Hospital.

This informatian is carrect, to the best of my knowledge, and these patients have not been

used to “support” the establishment or expansion of other programs.

AL M‘@ notarized: L /ff é@“— 3/;1/;1
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SERVICE DEMAND—ICU

As Of February 1, 2012 the Update to the IDPH’s Inventory identified a need for
40 additional ICU beds in Central DuPage Hospital’s IDPH-designated planning area.

This project proposes an addition of 14 ICU beds.

Consistent with the documentation provided in the hospital’s 2009 and 2010
IDPH Hospital Profiles, Central DuPage Hospital (CDH) has operated its 32 authorized
ICU beds well above the JHFSRB’s 60% target occupancy rate for the past two years.

During 2009 the occupancy rate was 87.3% and in 2010 the occupancy rate was 78.5%.

The proposed fourteen additional beds are necessary to reduce the experienced
high utilization and to address future demand for ICU beds. Based on the average of
2009/2010 utilization, twelve of the fourteen additional beds are needed to reduce the

hospital’s current ICU occupancy rate to the IHFSRB’s target level.

Please refer to ATTACHMENT 15 for a detailed discusston of projected demand,
which is based solely upon historical utilization and a modest increase in the transfer of
patients from other area hospitals to CDH’s Neurosciences Institute. Due to the nature of
ICU patients (as opposed to medical/surgical, acute mental iliness, or rehabilitation

patients), 1t is impractical to attempt to secure letters from individual physicians that

ATTACHMENT 20d4
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would identify projected referrals/admissions in any reasonable fashion. Rather, and as
discussed in ATTACHMENT 15, projected referrals are based on projected transfers of
patients to the Neurosciences Institute at a growth rate that ts only a fraction of the

historical growth in transfers,

/ ol ATTACHMENT 20d4




STAFFING

Central DuPage Hospital’s existing acute mental illness unit meets or exceeds all
IDPH or accreditation-related staffing requirements, and will continue to do so following

the proposed expansion.

The hospital enjoys a reputation as being a “good place to work™ and operates
with few vacancies. No difficulties are anticipated in the recruitment and hiring of the
incremental staffing required to support the proposed programs and additional beds.
Current employees of the applicants will be given the first opportunity to apply for
positions, approximately 10-12 weeks prior to the expansion. Advertisements will be
placed in local publications approximately 8 weeks prior to the expansion, and all

incremental clinical staff will be in place 1-2 weeks, prior to the expansion.

/ &7 ATTACHMENT 22e




PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

With this the approval and implementation of this project, Central DuPage

Hospital will be in compliance with review criterion 1110.730 1.

7 Y3 ATTACHMENT 22f




II'CADENCE
(U FeacTr

February 20, 2012

Illinois Health Facilities
and‘S‘ervic‘es Review Board

525 West Jefferson

Springfield, IL 62761

To Whom It May Concern:
Please be advised that it is fully anticipated that Central DuPage Hospital’s acute mental

illness (AMI) beds will reach the IHFSRB’s target occupancy level by the second year
following the proposed project’s completion, and that they will maintain that level.

Sincerely,
)l L
Michael Vivoda
President
% /(( Qg@o_g 202
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25 N. winfield Road
winfield, lllincis 60190

T. 6309331600
TTY for the hearing

/ o q impaired 630.933.4833
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SERVICE MODERNIZATION
CLINICAL SERVICE AREAS OTHER THAN CATEGORIES OF SERVICE

Central DuPage Hospital operates a large and broad-based outpatient mental
health program, which includes adult and adolescent evaluation services, individual
counseling, group therapy, intensive outpatient programs for adulits and adolescents, and
a partial hospitalization program. Nearly 43,000 patient hours of care were provided
through these programs during FY2011. The hospital also operates a broad spectrum of
detoxification and outpatient chemical dependency programs, with a prograrh mix for
adolescents and aduits similar in scope to that identified above. In excess of 39,000
patient hours of outpatient chemical dependency evaluations and therapy were provided
through the program in FY2011. Approximately 97% of the patient hours of care
provided are provided in group settings. These services are provided in approximately
12,000 sf of space 1n the hospital’s mental health building lo‘.:ated on the perimeter of the
campus. That Building 1s scheduled for demolition, with the programs being relocated to

vacant space in the hospital’s Center building.

Utilization of the outpatient programs increased by over 13% from FY2019 to
FY2011, and available space is being used at its functional capacity, at 90+% of the
available time in the seven available group rooms, For planning purposes, and because
the programs are operating at or near their functional capacity, utilization is anticipated

to increase very minimally until the more appropriately configured therapy space to be

ATTACHMENT 37c¢
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provided through the proposed project (i.e. rooms sized to accommodate different sized
patient groups) is available, allowing a more efficient use of space. Once the relocation
is completed, utilization is projected to increase by 5% a year, to approximately 86,300

patient hours during the first year and 90,500 during the second year following the

project’s completion.

Eight group rooms will be provided, of varying sizes to accommodate groups of
20-50 patients and staff. Individual (non-group) therapy will be provided in the
therapists’ offices. The applicants anticipate that, with 90,500 projected hours of care

provided during the second year of availability, the area will be functioning at 85-90% of

capacity.

The table below identifies the outpatient utilization during the past three fiscal

years.

Hours of Qutpatient Care Provided

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011

Mental Health 33,890 36,812 42,708

Chemical Dependency 38,724 37.420 39,441

72,614 74,232 82,149

% increase 2.2% 10.7%
ATTACHMENT 37c
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Information

June 30, 2011 | |
(With Independent Auditors” Report Theréon)
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KPMG LLP

303 East Wacker Drive
Chicago, IL 60601-5212

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
CDH/Deinor Health System:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of CDH/Delnor Health System and
Affiliates (the Corporations) as of June 30, 2011, and the rclated consolidated statements of operations,
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the period of April 1, 2011 (date of merger) through June 30,
2011, These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporations’ management, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statcments based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
intcrnal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing andit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporations’
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, cvidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement prescntation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of CDH/Delnor Health System and Affiliates as of June 30, 2011, and the
results of their operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the period of April 1, 2011 (date of
merger) through June 30, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Our andit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The consolidating information included in schedules 1 through 3 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis of the 2011 consclidated financial statements rather than to present the financial
position, results of operations, and changes in net assets of the individual corporations. The 2011
consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing proceduses applied in the audit of the 2011
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the 2011 consolidated financial statcments taken as a whole.

KPMe LIP

September 21, 2011
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Balance Shect
June 30, 2011

(In thousands)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,899
Current portion of assets limited or restricted as to use 100
Receivables:
Patient and resident accounts, less allowance
for doubtful accounts of $27,046 111,341
Estimated rcceivables under third-party reimbursement
programs and other 32,058
Inventories 5,480
Prepaid expenses 20,524
Total current assets 210,402
Assets whose use is limited or restricted, net of current partion:
By board for investment 1,111,783
Self-insurance trust 27,629
Held by trustee under debt agreements 49,135
Donor restricted 13,520
Total assets whose use is limited or restricted,
net of current portion 1,202,067
Land, buildings, and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation and amortization 818,279
Other assets:
Notes and advances receivable 57,985
Retirement plan assets 4,372
Investments in joint ventures :
and other assets 49,332
Total other assets 111,689
$ 2,342,437

Total assets
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Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Current installments of long-icrm debt
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:
Salaries and wages
Pension
Interest
Other
Estimated payablcs under third-party
reimbursement programs

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of unamortized bond premiums
and current installments

Construction payables

Retirement plan liabilities

Deferrcd revenue and other liabilitics

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

Sec accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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5 4,658
36,319

60,525
3,367
3,997

25,542

87,075

221,483

595,402
10,091
4372
87,141

918,489

1,410,428
8,255
5,265

1,423,948

$ 2,342,437
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statement of Qperations
Period of Apnl 1, 2011 (date of merger) through June 30, 2011

(In thousands)

Net patient and resident service revenue $ 229,151
QOther revenue 13,374
Total revenue 242,525
Expenses:
Salaries and wages 84,585
Employee benefits 22,713
Professional fecs and purchased services 32,154
Supplies 36,859
Interest 3,203
Depreciation and amortization 18,177
Provision for uncollectible accounts 15,128
Other 20,946
Total expenses 233,765
~ Revenue in excess of expenses 8,760
Nonoperating gains and losses:
Investment return, unrestricted coniributions, and other, net 3,016
Revenue and gains in excess of expenses
and losses 11,776
Other changes in unrestricted nct assets:
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on other-than-trading securities 1,371
Joint venture equity transactions 36
Net assets released from restriction for the purchase of land, buildings, and
equipment 209
$ 13,392

Increase in unresiricted net assets

See accompanying notes fo consolhidated financial statements.
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Period of April 1, 2011 (date of merger) through June 30, 2011

{In thousands)
Increase in unrestricted net assets 3 13,392
Temporarily restricted nct assets:
Contributions for specific purposcs 1,223
Investment return 12
Net asgets relcased from restriction and used for operations (388)
Net assets released from restriction for the purchase
of land, buildings, and equipment (209)
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 638
Permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions to be held in perpetuity 3
Tavestment retun 7
Increase in permanently restricted net assets 10
Change in net assets 14,040
Net asscts at the beginning of period 1,409,908
$ 1,423,948

Net assets at cnd of period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Period of April 1, 2011 {date of merger) through June 30, 2011

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities and gains and losses:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities and gains and losses:
Depreeiation and amortization
Amortization of net bond premiums
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Loss on write-off of defeited finance charges
Realized and change in unrealized gains on investments, net
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Amortization of entrance fees
Joint venture equily transactions
Permanently restricted contributions and investment return
Equity earnings in joint ventures, net of cash distributions received
Joint venture impairment
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Inventories and prepaid expenses
Accounts payable, accrued liabilitics, and other liabilities
Estimated payables under third-party reimbursement programs

Net cash provided by operating activities and gains and losses

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of assets whose use is limited or restricted
Proceeds from sales or maturities of assets whose use is limiled or restricted

Acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment
Change in construction payables
Net change in other assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments and defeasance of long-term debt
Permanently restricted contributions and investment return

Net cash used in financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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14,040

18,177
(12)
15,128
254
(561)
4,063
(131)
(36)
(10)
(251)
668

8,375
713
11,017
(398)

71,036

(300,655)
279,264
(38,703)

961)
(2,120)

(63,175)

(8,713)
10

(8,703)

(842)
41,741

40,899

10,723
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011
{(In thousands)

CDH/Deinor Heaith System and Affiliates

Effective April I, 2011, Delnor-Community Health System (Delnor) and Central DuPage Health
(CDHealth) merged to form CDH/Delnor Health System. The merger was effectuated by CDHealth
becoming the sole corporate member of Delnor and its affiliated entities. Concurrent with the merger, the
Board of Directors of CDHealth was reconstituted to include equal representation from Delnor and
CDHealth. The reconstituted CDHealth Board of Directors excrcises contral over CDHealth, Delnor, and
all of their respective affiliates through ownership, sole voting membership, the authority to approve board
membership, or the holding of certain reserve powers. The merger of Delnor and CDHealth was approved
by the boards of directors of both organizations to make available the resources and specialties of both
health systems to the communities they serve. The combination of CDHealth and Delnor has been
accounted for as a merger given the ceding of control by both organizations to the reconstituted CDHealth
Board of Dircctors. The accompanying consolidated financial statements of CDH/Delnor Health System
present the financial position and results of operations of the merged entity as of and subsequent to the

merger date.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CDHealth and Delnor, which
were incorporated to promote and encourage health and human services in the communities they serve, and

the following affiliates (collectively referred to as the Corporations);

CDH Historical Affiliates

J Central DuPage Hospital Association (CDH), a not-for-profit acutc care hospital. CDH provides
inpatient, outpatient, and emergency care for residents in the Wheaton, Winfield, West Chicago,
Glen Ellyn, and surrounding arcas.

. Central DuPage Physician Group (CDPG), a not-for-profit corporation that contracts with licensed
physicians to provide medical services to patients, hospitals, affiliated group practices, or other
medical care facilities,

. Community Nursing Service of DuPage County, Inc. d/b/a CNS Home Health (CNS), a
not-for-profit corporation that provides home healthcare and hospice services.

. DuPage Health Services, Inc. (DHSI), a wholly owned for-profit subsidiary of CDHealth. DHSI
provides various physician support as well as other business activities in furtherance of the interests
of DHSI and the CDHealth healthcare delivery system.

. PAHCS 11, d/b/a Central DuPage Business Health, a not-for-profit corporation that opcrates a
business dedicated to the advancement and promotion of health for employees of companies within
the communities served by CDHealth and its affiliates.

. Ceniral DuPage Special Health Association (Special Health), a corporation that operates a
pharmaceutical distribution center serving the Corporations and their patients.

. Central DuPage Health Foundation (Foundation), a not-for-profit corporation that promotes and

supports patient-centered services and programs of CDHealth and its affiliates.

ATTACHMENT 39
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011
{In thousands)

Delnor Historical Affilintes

Delnor-Community Hospital (Delnor Hospital), a charitable not-for-profit organization providing
acute heaithcare services primarily to the St Charles, Gencva, Batavia, and Elburn, Illinois

communities.

Delnor-Community Health Care Foundation (Delnor Foundation), a not-for-profit organization that
exists principally to solicit, receive, and grant gifts and confributions for and on behalf of charitable
service organizations.

Delnor-Community Residential Living, Inc. (Residential Living), d/b/a Deinor Glen, a not-for-profit
organization that owns and operates a residential supportive living facility that includes 78
residential supportive living units and related facilities.

Living Well Cancer Resource Center (Living Well), a not-for-profit organization cstablished in 2006
for the purpose of providing cancer support and wellness.

DelCom Corporation {DelCom), an Illinois taxable for-profit organization that engages in for-profit
healthcare and related ventures.

At the April 1, 2011 merger date, neither Delnor nor CDHealth had significant assets or liabilities that do
not require recognition under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The application of merger
accounting to the combination as of April 1, 2011 required Delnor to conform certain accounting policies

for consistency with CDHeaith, including capitalization of supplies inventory and the estimation of
self-insured workers’ compensation lHabilitics.

ATTACHMENT 39
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 201t
{In thousands)

The amounts recognized as of the April 1, 2011 merger date for each major class of assets, liabilities, and
net asscts for CDHealth and Delnor, inclusive of opening balance adjustments, arc provided in the

following table:

CDH Delnor Adjustments
and affiliates _and affiliates Dehit Credit Total
Current gsseis:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 30,600 11,139 — — 41,739
Receivables, net of
allowances 136,331 30,433 . — 166,764
Other corrent assets 21,344 5,970 — 601 26,713
Total current
assets 188,275 47,342 — 601 235,216
Assets whose use is limited :
or restricted 952,908 232,185 — —_ 1,185,093
Land, buildings, and
equipment, net 624,880 172,876 — — 797,756
Other assets 95,037 10,931 — — 105,968
Total assets $ 1,861,100 463,534 — 601 2,324,033
Current liabilities:
Current installments of
long-term debt $ 2,575 2,495 — - 5,070
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 162,607 47,874 — 643 211,124
Total current :
liabilities 165,182 50,369 — 643 216,194
Long-term debt, excluding
current installments 466,847 136,857 — — 603,704
Other labilities 71,141 23,086 — — 04 227
Total iiabilities 703,170 210,312 —_ 643 914,125
Net assets: '
Unrestricted 1,149,286 249,071 1,244 — 1,397,113
Temporanly restricted 3,389 4,151 — — . 1,540
Permanently restricted 5,255 — —_ — 5,255
Total net assets 1,157,930 253,222 1,244 — 1,409,908
Total liabilities
and netassets § 1,861,100 463,534 1,244 643 2,324,033
ATTACHMENT 39
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011
{In thousands)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following accounting policics, all of which conform to general practice within the healthcare industry,
are utilized in presenting the consolidated financial statements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. gencrally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilitics and disclosure of contingent asscts and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounis of revenue and
cxpenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The consolidated statement of operations includes revenue and gains in excess of expenses and
losses. Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
healthcare services are reported as revenue and expenses. Transactions incidental to the provision of
patient and residential care services are reported as gains and losses. Changes in unrestricted net
assets, which are excluded from revenue and gains in cxcess of expenses and losses, consistent with
industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on other-than-trading investment securities,
equity transactions of wnconsolidated joint ventures, and contributions of long-lived assets (including
assets acquired using contributions that by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of

acquiring such assets).

Net patient and resident service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, residents, third-party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated
retroactive adjustments uwnder reimbursement agreements with third-party payers and policy
discounts. Retroactive adjustmeni{s are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits, interest-bearing accounts at banks, overnight
sweep investments, certain money market fund investments, and certain fixed income securities with

maturities at date of purchase of threc months ar less.

Investments in equity securities with readily detcrminable fair valucs and all investments in debt
securitics are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet. Investments in a private
equity real estate fund and a hedge fund of funds are reported at cost. Investment retum {(including
realized gains and losses on investments, intercst, and dividends) is included in revenue and gains in
excess of cxpenses and losses unless the income or loss is temporarily or permanently restricted by
donors, in which case the investment return is recorded directly to temporarily or permanently
restricted net assets. Changes in net unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from
revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses unless the investments are classified as trading
securities. A decline in the market value of any other-than-trading security below cost that is deemed
to be other-than-temporary results in a reduction in carrying amount to fair value. The impairment is
included in nonoperating losses and a new cost basis for the security is established. To determine
whether an impairment is other-than-temporary, the Corporations consider whether they have the
ability and intent fo hold the investment until 2 market price recovery and consider whether evidence
indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the contrary. Evidence
considercd in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the severity and dugration of
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011
(In thousands)

the impairment, changes in value subsequent to year-end, and forecasted performance of the
Imvestee.

The Corporations apply the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic
820-10, Fair Value Measurements, for fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities and
for fair value measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair valve in the
financial statements on a recusring basis. ASC Subtopic 820-10 defines fair value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. ASC Subtopic 820-10 also establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair valuc measurements (note 7).

In conjunction with the adoption of ASC Subtopic 820-10, the Corporations adopted the
measurement provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2009-12, Invesiments in Certain
Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Iis Equivalent), to certain investments in
money market funds that do not have readily determinable fair values. This guidance amends ASC
Subtopic 820-10 and allows for the estimation of the fair value of investment companies for which
the investment does not have a readily determinable fair value using net asset value per share or its

equivalent.

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2010-06, Improving
Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (ASU 2010-06). ASU 2010-06 amends
ASC Subtopic 820-10 to provide additional disclosure requirements for transfers into and out of
Levels 1 and 2 and for activity in Level 3 and to clarify other existing disclosure requirements. The
Corparations implemented ASU 2010-06 for the peried ended June 30, 2011.

The Corporations have adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, related to fair valuc measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that
are recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements on a nonrecurring basis.

The Corporations have adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 825-10, The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assels and Financial Liabilities. ASC Topic 825-10 gives the Corporations the irrevocable
option to report most financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value on an
instrument-by-instaument basis, with changes in fair value reported in earnings. Since adoption and
through June 30, 2011, the Corporations’ management has not elected to measure any additional
eligible financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value.

Assets whose use is limited or resiricted include: assets set aside by the Boards of Directors
(the Boards) for investment purposcs and future capital improvements, over which the Boards retain
control and may at their discretion subsequently use for any other purpose; assets held by a trustee
under the self-insured professional and general liability program; assets held by trustees under the
terms of bond indentures; and all donor-restricted investments. Assets limited or restricted as curent
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet are classified as current assets to the
extent they are expected to satisfy obligations classified as current liabilities in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheet.
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011
{In thousands)

The Corporations accouat for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with ASC Topic 815,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities, as amended, which requires
that all derivative instruments be recorded on the consclidated balance sheet at their respective fair

values.

Land, buildings, and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the cstimated
uscful lives of depreciable assets using the straight-line method. Amortization of leasehold
improvements is over the shorter of the useful lives of the assets or the respective lease terms.
Interest cost is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring or constructing significant capital
assets, including net intercst cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction.

Inventories consist primarily of supplies and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or
market,

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use has been limited by donors to a specific time
period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by doners to be maintained
in perpetuity. Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2011 principally represent amounts
restricted for the purpose of acquiring long-lived assets or for operations.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Unrestricted contributions are reported as nonoperating gains. Contributions are
reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reportcd in the consolidated statement of
operations as nct assets released from restriction, Net assets released from restriction for operating
purposes are included with other revenue. Gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire
long-tived assets are reported as restricted support. Expirations of donor restrictions are reported
when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service,

The Corporations’ permanently restricted net assets represent endowment funds for which the
investments arc to be held in perpetuity and the related investment income is expendable to support
healthcare or other donor-designated services. The Corporations have adopted the provisions of
ASC Subtopic 958, Endowments for Not-for-Profit Organizations: Net Asset Classification of Funds
Subject to an Enacted Version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of
2006 (UPMIFA), and Enhanced Disclosures for All Endowment Funds. ASC Subtopic 958 provides
guidance on the net asset classification of donor-restricted endowment funds for a not-for-profit
organization that is subject to an enacted version of UPMIFA. ASC Subtopic 958 also enhances
disclosures related to both donor-restricted and board-designated endowment funds, whether or not

the organization is subject to UPMIFA (note 15).

The Corporations incur expenses for the provision of healthcare services and related general and
administrative activities.
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis
June 30, 2011
(In thousands)

CDHealth, CDH, CDPG, CNS, PAHCS II, Special Health, Foundation, Delnor Hospital, Delnor
Foundation, Residential Living, and Living Well are not-for-profit corporations as described in
Section 501{c}(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) are exempt from federal inconie taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code.

DelCom is an Iilinois for-profit corporation that recognizes deferred income taxes under the asset
and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amourts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or scttled. The effcct on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

DelCom’s tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred
tax assets at June 30, 2011 are primarily the result of net operating loss carryforwards. At June 30,
2011, DelCom had net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes of
approximately $5,646, which expire at various future dates through 2020. These net operating {oss
carryforwards give rise to a deferred 1ax asset before valuation allowance of approximately $2,158.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considered whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the perieds in
which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers projected future
taxable income and tax planning strategics in making this assessment, Based upon the level of
historical losses and future projections over the period in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes it more likely than not that DelCom wilt not realize the majority of
the benefits of these deductible differences. Accordingly, the deferred tax assets atfributable to these
net operating loss carryforwards not realized at June 30, 2011 have been fully reserved in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements due to the uncertainty of realization.

The Corporations apply ASC Subtopic 740-10, Income Taxes — Overall, which addresses the
determination of how tax benefiis claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be
recorded in the consolidated financial statements. Under ASC Subtopic 740-10, the Corporations
must recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the
tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits
of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the consolidated financial statcments from such a
position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being
realized upon ultimate settlement. ASC Subtopic 740-10 also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest, and penaitics on income taxes and accounting in interim periods and requires
increased disclosures. As of June 30, 201!, the Corporations do not have any liabilities for

unrecognized tax benefits.
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011
(In thousands)

A provision for unrelated business income federal and state taxes of $806 for the three-month period
ended June 30, 2011 is included within nonoperating losses in the consolidated statement of
operations. There are no significant defcired income taxes, deferred tax assets, or deferred tax
liabilities attributable to unrelated business activities.

Net Patient and Resident Service Revenue

The Corporations have agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts different
from their established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors is as

follows:

Medicare — Inpatient acutc care, outpatient, and home health services rendered to Medicare program
beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates, These rates vary according to patient
classification systems that are based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The prospectively
determined rates arc not subject to retroactive adjustment. The Corporations’ classification of
patients under the prospeciive payment systems and the appropriateness of the patients’ admissions
are subject to validation revicws.

The Corporations are reimbursed for certain other services and costs based upon fee schedules and
other reimbursement methodologies. The Corporations are reimbursed for certain services at a
tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual reimbursement reports by

‘the Corporations and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. The Corporations’ Medicare

reimbursement reports through June 30, 2007 have been audited by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.

Medicaid — Inpatient and outpatient services rendercd to Medicaid program beneficiaries are
reimbursed under prospectively determined rates and fee schedules, respectively. Medicaid payment
methodologies and rates for services are based on the amount of funding available to the State of

Hlinois Medicaid program.

The State of Illinois (the State) has enacted an assessment program to assist in the financing of its
Medicaid program, which expires on June 30, 2013. Pursuant to this program, hospitals within the
State arc required to remit payment to the State of Illinois Medicaid program under an assessment
formula approved by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS). The Corporations have
included their assessment of $3,851 for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011 within
professional fecs and purchased services expensc in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations. The assessment program aiso provides hospitals within the State with additional
Medicaid reimbursement based on funding formulas also approved by CMS. The Corporations have
included their additional reimbursement of $3,834 within net patient and resident service revenue in
the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

The Corporations have also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment under these
agrecments includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges,
prospectively determined per diem rates, and cost-based formulas.
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CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011
{In thousands)

Accruals for settlements with third-pasty payors are made based on estimates of amounts to be received or
paid under the terms of the respective contracts and related settlement principles and regulations of the
federal Medicare program, the Illinois Medicaid program, and the Blue Cross Plan of [llinois. For the
three-month period ended June 30, 2011, there were no significant adjustments to the consolidated
statement of operations related to retroactive settlements and changes in prior year third-party

reimbursement estimates.

Charity Care

The Corporations maintain records to identify and monitor the level of charity carc they provide, These
records include the amount of charges forgone for services and supplies furnished under their charity care
policics, the estimatcd cost of these services and supplies, and equivalent service statistics. CDH, Delnor
Hospital, and CNS also consider the difference betwecn the cost of providing services to Medicaid and
Medicare patients and residents and the amounts reimbursed by Medicaid and Medicare as charity care.
Since these entities do not expect payment for charity care services, charges related to charity care services

are not recorded as revenue.

In addition, these entitics also report the cost associated with services provided to the community as charity
care. The following information presents the level of charity care provided during the three-month period
ended June 30, 2011:

Costs of free care provided to non-Medicaid and non-Medicarc patients $ 4,830
Excess of cost over reimbursement for services provided to Medicaid patients 5,388
Excess of cost over reimbursement for services provided to Medicare patients 15,790
Community services provided, at cost 1,389

$ 27,397

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Corporations grant credit without collateral to their patients and residents, most of whom reside locally
and are gencrally insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients,
residents, and third-party payors at fune 30, 2011 follows:

Medicare 20%
Medicaid 10
Managed care/commercial 45
Other 25
100%
ATTACHMENT 39
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A summary of the Corporations’ Medicare, Medicaid, and managed care/contracted payor utilization
percentages based upon gross patient service revenue for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011
follows:

Medicare 36%
Medicaid 10
Managed care/commercial 49
Other 5
100%

Investments

Investments are reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as assets whose use is limited or
restricted and retirement plan assets. A summary of the composition of the Corporations’ investment
portfoljo at June 30, 2011 follows:

Corporate bonds and notes $ 685,277
Government and agency securities 60,307
Mutual funds and common stocks 345,165
Alternative limited partnership investments, at cost 16,480
Short-term securities and money market funds 99,310

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted and retirement plan
assets $ 1,206,539

The composition of investment return on the Corporations’ investment portfolios for the three-month
period ended June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Interest and dividend income $ 7,937
Net realized gains on sale of investments 751
Net change in unrealized gains and losses during the holding period {190)

Investment return 3 8,498
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Changes in unrealized gains and losses during the holding period are included with nonoperating gains
(losses) for that portion of the investment portfolios that management has designated as trading securitics,
All other changes in unrealized gains and losses during the holding period are attributable to
other-than-trading securities and, accordingly, are excluded from the determination of revenue and gains in
excess of expenses and losses. Investment retwrns are included in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011 as

follows:

Interest and dividend income 5 . 7,937

Net realized gains on sale of investments 751

Net change in unrealized gains and losses during the holding period {190}
Investment return $ 8,498

Gross unrealized losses on other-than-trading investment securities and the fair value of the related
sceurities, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position, at June 30, 2011 were as follows:

Less ihan 12 months 12 months or longer Tatal
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Falr Unrealized
value lgsses value Tosses value losses
Corporate bonds and notes by 102,078 (225) — — 132,078 (225)
Govemment and agency
seeoritics 3,041 (1) — — 3,041 {1}
Total 5 105,119 (226) — — 105,119 (22

The decline in fair value of corporate bonds and notes is primarily attributable to changes in interest rates
and the market’s perception of credit quality. The Corporations have the intent and ability to hold thesc
investments unti! a market price recovery or maturity, and therefore, these investments are not considered

other-than-temporarily impaired.

Fair Value Measurements
(@)  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Cosporations in cstimating the fair value
of its financial instruments:

. The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet for the following
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments: cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, inventories, prepaid ¢xpenses, accounts payable and accrued
liabiiities, construction payables, and estimated third-paity payor settlements.

. Assets whose use is limited or restricted; Fair values are estimated based on prices provided by
its investment managers, custodian banks, and valuations provided by an independent
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investment reporting service, Common stocks, quoted mutual funds, and direct
U.S. government obligations are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date
multiplied by the quantity held. Corporate bonds, notes, certain American Depository
Receipts, and U.S. Agency securities are measured using other observable inputs. The carrying

value equals fair value.

[nterest rate swap agreements: The fair valuc of interest rate swaps is determined vsing pricing
models developed based on the LIBOR swap rate and other observable market data. The value
was determined afier considering the potential impact of netting agreements, adjusted to
reflect nonperformance risk of both the counterparty and the Corporations. The carrying value

equals fair value.
Fair value of fixed rate Jong-term debt is estimated based on market indications for the same
or similar debt issucs.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Corporations apply ASC Subtopic 820-10 for fair value measurements of financial assets and
financial liabilities and for fair value measurements of nonfinancial items that arc recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. ASC Subtopic 8§20-10
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hicrarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority t0 measurcments
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value

hierarchy are as follows:

Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Corporations have the ability to access at the measurement date. Level | assets include
cash and cash equivalents, common stock, quoted mutual funds, and direct U.S. government
obligations.

Level 2 inputs arc observable inputs other than Level | prices such as quoted prices for stmilar
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are
abservable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of
the assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets inclnde corporate bonds, notes, American Depository

Receipts and U.S. agency sceurities, and nonqueted mutual funds.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inpuis for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
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The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recusring basis

at June 30, 2011:

Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents $
Assets whose use is limited
or resiricted:
Corporate bonds and
_hotes
Government and
agency securidies
Mutual funds and
common stocks
Short-term securities and
money market funds
Retirement plan assets:
Government and agency
securities
Mutual funds and common
stocks
Short-term securities and
money market funds

Total $

Liabilities:
Interest rate derivatives &

Alternative Investients

Quoted prices

in active Significant

markets for other Significant

identical observable unohservable

assets inputs inputs
Total (Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
40,899 40,899 — —_
685,277 88,978 596,299 —
59,090 27,094 31,996 —
342,088 342,088 — —_
99,232 99,232 — —
1,217 1,217 — —_
3,077 3,072 — 5
78 78 — —
1,230,958 602,658 628,295 5

30,063 — 30,063 —

The Corporations evaluate investments carried under the cost method of accounting for impairment
on an annual basis. These investments are considered to be impaired whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an investment may not be recoverable from future
cash flows. Recoverability of these investments is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount
of an investment to futurc cash flows expected to be generated by the investment. When such
investments are considered to be impaired, the impairment loss recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying value of the investment exceeds the fair value of the investment. The
Corporations did not recognize any impairment charges during the three-month period ended
June 30, 2011 related to cost basis investments. The carrying and cstimated fair value of cost basis
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investments at June 30, 2011 was $16,480 and $16,987, respectively. Fair value of alternative
investments is based on the Corporations® proportionate intercst in the net asset value of the

respective investment.

Derivative Instruments

The Corporations have interest rate related derivative instruments to manage exposure on debt instruments.
By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates, the Corporations
are exposed to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the
terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty
owes the Corparations, which creates credit risk for the Corporations. When the fair value of a derivative
contract is negative, the Corporations owe the counterparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit risk.
The Corporations minimize the credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with
high-quality counterparties. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that
results from a change in interest rates, The market risk associated with interest rate changes is managed by
establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be
undertaken. The Corporations’ management also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of its derivative
positions in the context of their total blended cost of capital.

In an effort to lower its overall cost of capital on long-term debt, the Corporations maintain four interest
rate swap agreements, which have the effect of changing the variable rate on a portion of the long-term
debt to a fixed rate. The notional amounts under the intcrest rate swap agrecments are reduced over the
term of the agreements. Under the first agreement, the Corporations receive 67% of three-month
USD-LIBOR-BBA on a notional amount of $64,663 every month, and make payments at an annual fixed
rate of 3.518% through November [, 2038, This agreement gives the swap counterparty a one-time option
to cancel the swap at fair value on November 1, 2017, after which, if unexerciscd, the swap will remain
outstanding through its stated expiration. Under the second agreement, the Corporations receive 67% of
three-month USD-LIBOR-BBA on a notional amount of $64,663 every month, and make payments at an -
annual fixed rate of 3.818% through November |, 2038. Under the third agreement, the Corporations
receive 67% of LIBOR on a notional amount of $35,000 every month, and make payments at an annual
fixed rate of 4.18% through May 1, 2032. Under the fowth agreement the Corporations receive 67% of
LIBOR on a notional amount of $33,275 every month, and make payments at an annual fixed rate of
2.89% through May 1, 2033. Under all four swap agreements, the Corporations retain the right to cancel
cither or both in whole or in part at any time for cash at settlement value.

The interest rate swap agreements were not designated as cash flow hedge instruments by the
Corporations, and therefore, changes in the fair vatue of the interest rate swap agreements of $(4,063) for
the three-month period ended June 30, 2011 were recognized as losses within nonoperating gains and
losses: investment return, unrestricted contributions, and other, net in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations. The fair value of the interest rate swap liability of $30,063 at June 30, 2011 is
included with deferred revenue and other Jong-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet. Total net payments made by the Corporations under the swap agreements totaled $1,799 for the
three-month period ended June 30, 2011 and are reported within interest expense in the accompanying

consolidated statement of operations.
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Investment in Joint Ventures

The Corporations have joint venture and operating partnership investment interests in ambulatory surgical
facilities, fitness centers, and other health-related busincsses that are accounted for using the cquity
method. The foliowing is a summary of financial information as of and for the three-month period ended

June 30, 2011 relating to equity method joint ventures;

Current asseis S 17,466
Current liabilities 8,556
' Working capital 8,910
Property and equipment, net 40,557
Other long-term assets ' 293
Long-term liabilitics 12,174
Net assets $ 37,586

Revenues $ 11,539
Expenses ' 9,591

Excess of revenues over
expenses b 1,948

The carrying value of equity method joint venture investments of $13,961 at June 30, 2011 is included with
investments in joint ventures and other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Net equity
earnings from these investments amounted to $1,534 during the three-month period ended June 30, 2011
and is included with net nonoperating gains in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. The
Corporations received cash distributions fiom such joint ventures of $1,283 for the three-month period
ended June 30, 2011. During the three-month period ended June 30, 2011, the Corporations recognized a
$668 impairment of a joint venture for that portion of the joint venture’s carrying value considered

permanently impaired.

In 2009, CDHealth entered into a joint venture with ProCure Treatment Centers, Inc. and certain radiation
oncologists that sought to build, equip, and operatc a proton beam therapy center (the Proton Beam
Venture). CDHealth provided initial capital contributions of $10,000 to the Proton Beam Venture during
2009. CDHealth has an approximate 12.2% effective equity interest in the Proton Beam Veature, which is
accounted for under the cost method. The $10,000 carrying value of the Proton Beam Venture is included
with investments in joint ventures and other assets. The proton beam venturce became operational during

2011.

Simultaneously with its investment, CDHealth also provided a 540,000 loan to ProCure Treatment Centers,
Ine. to support the development and construction of the proton beam therapy center. The loan is evidenced
by an unsecured note receivable and accrues interest at a rate per annum of 14% over the term, which is
approximately 12 years. Interest on the note is accrued and added to the outstanding note receivable
balance for the first four years. Interest is due and payable semiannually after the fourth year. Principal and
accrued interest payments are due at the maturity of the note receivaiT ACPRGEINIT 300gnized
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approximately $1,869 in accrued interest income on the note receivable for the three-month period ended
June 30, 2011, which is included in nonoperating gains in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations. Included in notes and advances receivable at June 30, 2011 is $57,127 of total outstanding
principal and accrued interest amounts rclated to the note receivable.

In support of its efforts to develop a broader oncology presence, CDHealth purchased a parcel of land for
£8,215 on which the proton beam therapy center and a cancer treatment center were constructed. CDHealth
entered into a ground lease agreement with ProCure Management, LLC to lease the land on which the
proton beam therapy center operates. The initial term of the ground lease is 50 years with the option to
renew for two 20-year periods. For the three-month period ended June 30, 2011, CDHealth recognized
%108 of rental income under the land lease, which is included in other revenue in the accompanying

consolidated statement of operations.

Other Revenue — Entrance Fees and Revenue Recognition

Residential Living recognizes revenue from residents through service fees, monthly assessments, and
amortization of entrance fees. Service fees and monthly assessments are recognized as revenue in the
period in which they relate. Residents also pay entrance fees, which can be all or partially refundable as
determined by the resident’s length of occupancy. Resident refunds limited to the extent of reoccupancy
proceeds are included in deferred revenue. Refundable entrance fees are amortized to revenue using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the residents’ townhomes. Nonrefundable portions of
entrance fees are included in deferred revenue from entrance fees and are amortized to revenue using the
straight-line method over the actuarially determined remaining life expectancies of the residents.
Amortization of entrance fees amounted to $131 for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011, which is
included in other revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. Gross refundable

entrance fees at June 30, 2011 amounted to $6,696.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment
A summary of land, buildings, and equipment as of June 30, 2011 follows:

Accumulated
depreciation

and
Cost amortization
Land 3 34919 —
Land improvements 43,120 21,888
Leasehold improvements 12,193 6,492
Buildings and building service equipment 715,081 241,517
Major movable equipment 329,029 236,776
Construction in progress 196,610 —
$ 1,324,952 506,673
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Construction in progress at June 30, 2011 consists primarily of costs incurred for a new patient bed tower
and other various construction and renovation projects. Significant contractual commitments outstanding at

June 30, 2011 on construction projects approximate $13,130.

Interest cost is capitalized as a component cost of significant capital projects, nct of any interest income
carned on unexpended project-specific borrowed funds, During the three-month period ended June 30,
2011, the Corporations capitalized $2,486 of interest cost. Gross interest cost capitalized was $2,500,
which was offset by $14 of investment income on borrowed funds held by the bond trustee,

The Corporations evaluate long-lived assets for impairment on an annual basis. Long-lived assets are
considered to be impaired whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable from future cash flows. No impairments of long-lived assets were recognized

during the three-month period ended June 30, 2011,

The Corporations lease medical office buildings to physicians and other healthcare providers under various
operating tease arrangements. Rental income recognized under the terms of operating leases amounted 1o
$2,603 for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011, and is included with other revenue. Future
minimum rental payments receivable under noncancelable operating lcases are as follows: 2012 — $8,219;
2013 — §7,073; 2014 — $6,441; 2015 - $5,426; 2016 — $3,613; and 2017 and thereafter — $4,868.

The Corporations lease office space and equipment under various operating lease agreements. Rental
cxpense recognized under the terms of operating leases amounted to $1,733 for the three-month period
cnded June 30, 2013, and is included with other expense. Future minimum rental commitments under
noncancelable office space operating leases are as follows: 2012 — $4,494; 2013 - $3,999, 2014 — $3,363;

2015 —$3,227; 2016 — $1,732; and 2017 and thereafter — $1,018.
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(12) Long-term Debt
A summary of long-term debt at June 30, 2011 follows:

CDH Master Trust Indenture obligations:

Revenue bonds, Series 2009 B with interest at various fixed rates
averaging 5.36% and maturing on various dates beginning
November 1, 2013 through November 1, 2039 $

Revenue bonds, Scries 2009 with interest at various fixed rates
averaging 5.25% and maturing on various dates beginning
November 1, 2014 through November 1, 2039

Variable rate demand revenue bonds, Series 2004 A, interest at a variable rate
determined daily, due by annual mandatory redemption through
November 1, 2038, effective interest rate of 0.20%

Periodic auction rate revenue honds, Series 2000 A-1, interest
at a variable rate determined daily, due by annuval mandatory
redemption through November 1, 2024, effective
interest rate of 0.32%

Periodic auction rate revenue bonds, Series 2000 A-2, interest at a
variable rate determined weekly, due by annual mandatory
redemption through November I, 2024, effective interest ratc of 0.31%

Delnor Master Trust Indenture obligations:

Fixed rate revenue bonds, Series 2002A, maturing on various dates between
2020 and 2022, in principal amounts ranging from $1,850 to $2,200; interest
rate of 5.25%

Fixed rate revenue bonds, Series 2002B, maturing on various dates between
2022 and 2023, in principal amounts ranging from $400 to $2,450; interest
ratc of 5.25%

Fixcd rate revenue bonds, Series 2002C, maturing on various dates between
2025 and 2027, in principal amounts ranging from $1,600 to §2,700;
interest rate of 5.25%

Fixed rate revenue bonds, Series 2002D, maturing on various dates between
2027 and 2032, in principal amounts ranging from $1,050 to $3,450; interest
rate of 5.25%

Fixed rate revenue bonds, Series 2003 A, maturing on various dates between
2009 and 2023, in principal amounts ranging from $625 to $2,525; interest
ratc of 5.00%

Fixed rate revenue bonds, Series 2003B, maturing on various dates between
2024 and 2032, in principal amounts ranging from $25 to $900; interest
ratc of 5.25%

Fixed rate revenue bands, Series 2003C, maturing on various dates between
2032 and 2033, in principal amounts ranging from $625 to $4,575; interest

rate of 5.25%

240,000

90,000

127,150

150

12,575

6,000

6,000

6,000

17,000

21,925

6,150

5,200
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Variable rate demand revenue refunding bonds, Series 2008A, maturing on
various dates between 2009 and 2038, in principal amounts ranging

from $170 to $8,025; intcrest rate of 0.25% $ 58,415
Delnor Foundation - South Elgin Holding Mortgage, interest

at 5.75% maturing through October 1, 2014 1,900

Total long-term debt 598,465

Less current installments of long-terrn debt 4,658

Plus unamortized net bond premiums 1,595
Long-term debt, net of unamortized bond premiums and current

installments $ 595,402

CDHealth and CDH, collectively referred to as the CDH Obligated Group, entered into a Master Trust
Indenture (CDH Master Trust Indenture) dated as of May 1, 2000. The purpose of the CDH Master Trust
Indenture is to provide a mechanism to be able to issue promissory notes and other evidences of
indebtedness in order to secufe the financing or refinancing of facilities and for other fawful proper
corporate purposes. The CDH Master Trust Indenture provides for other legal entities in the future to
participate with CDHcalth and CDH in a Credit Group for the payment of obligations and the performance
of all covenants contained therein. The Credit Group consists of the CDH Obligated Group and any
affiliate CDHealth designates as a Credit Group member. All notes issued under the CDH Master Trust
Indenture are the joint and several obligations of each member of the CDH Obligated Group. The CDH
Master Trust Indenture requires CDH Obligated Group members to cause Credit Group members to make
payments on notes issued by other members of the CDH Obligated Group if such other members are
unablc to satisfy their obligations under the CDH Master Trust Indenture. No other CDHealth affiliates are
currently designated as Credit Group members. As tong as any Series 2000 revenue bonds are ountstanding,
all bonds outstanding under the Master Trust Indenture are secured by a security interest in the CDH
Obligated Group’s unrestricted receivables. The security interest in unrestricted receivables can be
eliminated upon the extinguishment of all Series 2000 obligations.

On November 18, 2009, the Illinois Finance Authority issued $240,000 of Series 2009 B Bonds on behalf
of CDHealth. The loan of the Series 2009 B bond procceds is secured by a direct note obligation issued
under the CDH Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2009 B bond proceeds are being used, together with
certain other available funds of the Corporations, to pay and reimburse CDHealth and CDH for a portion of
the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, remodeling, and equipping certain healthcare facihities,
including, but not limited to, the construction and equipping of a five-story bed pavilion, medical imaging
center, coastruction of an additional parking garage, funded interest, and working capital. The Serics 2009
B bond proceeds were also used to current refund $14,365 of the outstanding principal of the Series 2000 B
Bonds, $14,365 of the outstanding principal of the Series 2000 C Bonds, $3,160 of the outstanding
principal of the Serics 2004 A Bonds, $34,750 of the ouistanding principal amount of the Series 2004 B
Bonds, and 834,965 of the outstanding principal amount of the Scries 2004 C Bonds. The Series 2009 B
Bonds comprised a $61,405 issuc of serial bonds maturing as of November 1, 2013 to 2021, a term bond of
$27,425 due as of November 1, 2024, a term bond of $27,370 duc as of November 1, 2029, and term bonds
of $20,000, $63,000, and 340,800 due as of November 1, 2039, The term bonds are subject to mandaiory
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bond sinking fund rcdemptions beginning as of November 1, 2022, 2025, and 2030, respectively. The
Series 2009 B Bonds bear inferest at effective rates ranging from 2.94% to 5.63% depending on the date of
maturity. These fixed rate bonds were issued at an overall premium from face value totaling $1,070, which
is being amortized ratably using the effective-interest method over the life of the bonds.

On May 6, 2009, the Illincis Finance Authonity issued $90,000 of Series 2009 Bonds on behalf of
CDHealth. The loan of the Series 2009 bond proceeds is secured by a promissory note issued under the
CDH Master Trust Indenture. The Series 2009 bond proceeds were used to pay and reimburse CDHealth
and CDH for a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, remodeling, and equipping
certain healthcare facilities and for funded interest. The Series 2009 Bonds comprised an $8,700 issue of
scrial bonds maturing as of November 1, 2014 to 2019, a term bond of $56,225 due as of November 1,
2027, and a $25,075 teym bond due as of November 1, 2039, The term bonds are subject to mandatory
bond sinking fund redemptions beginning as of November 1, 2015 and 2031. The Series 2009 Bonds bear
interest at effective rates ranging from 3.18% to 5.50% depending on the date of maturity. These fixed rate
bonds were issued at an overall discount from face value totaling $1,605, which is being amortized ratably
using the effective-interest method over the life of the bonds,

On May 19, 2004, the IHinois Finance Authority issued its $140,000 Series 2004 A Bonds on behalf of
CDHealth. The loan of the Series 2004 A Bond proceeds is secured by a direct note obligation issued under
the CDH Master Trust Indenture. The Scrics 2004 A Bond procecds were used to provide working capital,
pay the cost of issuing the bonds, retire certain then-existing indebtedness, and pay or rexmburse CDHealth
and CDH a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, remodeling, and equipping certain
heaithcare facilities. The Series 2004 A Bonds bear inferest at a variable rate daily mode. The Series 2004
A Bonds may be converted at the option of CDHealth, subject to certain restrictions, to bonds that bear
interest at different rates using different rate modalities, including different variable rates, Periodic Auction
Rate (PARS) rates, flexible rates, or fixed rates. The loan of the proceeds of the Series 2004 A Bonds is
secured by direct note obligations of the CDH Obligated Group. The Series 2004 A Bonds have put
options, which allow the bonds to be put prior to maturity or mandatory redemption. The CDH Obligated
Group has an agreement with an underwriter to remarket any bonds redcemed based on the excrcise of put

options.

On May 12, 2000, the Illinois Finance Authority issued $100,000 of PARS bonds, Series 2000 A, on
behalf of CDHealth. The Series 2000 A Bonds were issued through $50,000 of Sub-Series 2000 A-1 Bonds
and $50,000 of Sub-Series 2000 A-2 Bonds. The loan of the proceeds of the Serics 2000 A Bonds is
secured by direct note obligations of the CDH Obligated Group.

The Sub-Series 2000 A-1 Bonds bear intercst at the applicable PARS rate, which is subject to change
based on a daily auction. Interest is payable on the first business day of the following month for any daily
auction period. The Sub-Series 2000 A-2 Bonds bear interest at the applicable PARS rate based on a
weekly auction. Interest is payable on the first business day following the weekly auction period. During
any PARS rate period, Series 2000 A Bonds can be converted to a daily, 7-day, 28-day, 35-day,

three-month, six-month, or a special auction period.

‘The Series 2000 A Bonds are subject te a pesiodic auction process for which there must be sufficient new
bids for an existing bondholder to sell their bonds prior to maturity, Since FCWA@MT@“ have
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paid interest using a maximum rate formula under the bond indenture as specified for “failed auctions”
resulting from market conditions.

At the time the Serics 2000 A Bonds werc issued, the CDH Obligated Group obtained a financial guaranty
insurance policy through Municipal Bond Investors Assurance Corporation (MBIA) that guarantees the
payment of principal and interest on the Series 2000 A Bonds when due. The CDH Obligated Group also
maintains a liquidity facility agreement with JP Morgan for the Series 2004 A Bonds, which was set to
expire as of November 16, 2012, On Avgust 5, 2011, the CDH Obligated Group refunded the Illinois
Finance Authority Series 2004 A Bonds outstanding in the par amount of $127,150. The refunding of the
Series 2004 A Bonds was funded with the issuance of the Hlinois Finance Authority Scries 2011 A and
Series 2011 B Bonds by the CDH Obligated Group in the aggregate par amount of $127,150. The Serics
2011 A and Series 2011 B Bonds were issued in the Index Mode and have mandatory tenders on August 1,
2016 and August 2, 2021, respectively. The Series 2011 A and Series 2011 B Bonds are sccured by the

CDH Obligated Group.

Delnor Hospital entered into a Master Trust Indenture (Delnor Master Trust Indenture} dated as of May 15,
1989. The purpose of the Delnor Master Trust Indenture is to provide a mechanism to be able to issue
promissory notes and other evidences of indebtedness in order to secure the financing or refinancing of
facilitics and for other lawful proper corporate purposes. In May 2002, Delnor Hospital issued Auction
Rate Certificates, Series 2002 A, Sertes 2002 B, Serics 2002 C, and Series 2002 D, in the aggregate
amount of $35,000 through the Illinois Finance Authority (the Serics 2002 Bonds). Proceeds of the
Series 2002 Bonds were used to provide funding for various capital expenditures made by Delnor Hospital.
The Series 2002 Bonds bore interest at auction rates, which were detcrmined every 35 days. Holders of the
Series 2002 Bonds had a put option that allowed them to tender the bonds prior to maturity. The Hospital
had an agreement with an underwriter to remarket any bonds tendered based on the exercise of put options.

On May 23, 2008, the.Illinois Health Facilities Authority remarketed the Series 2002 Bonds as Fixed Rate
Revenue Bonds (Series 2002 Remarketed Bonds) in the aggregate amount of $35,000 on behalf of Delnor
Hospital. The proceeds from the Series 2002 bond remarkefing were used to convert the Series 2002
Auction Rate Certificates utilized to provide funding for various capital expenditures made by Delnor

Hospital to fixed rate revenue bonds.

Principal and intcrest payments on the Series 2002 Remarketed Bonds are gnaranteed by a bond insurance
poticy. In addition, the bonds are secured by Delnor Hospital’s unrestricted receivables. Provisions of the
bond indentures require Delnor Hospital to maintain certain minimum financial rafios and limit new
borrowings and transfers of property subject to compliance with certain financial ratios.

In July 2003, Delnor Hospital issued Auction Rate Certificates, Serics 2003 A, Series 2003 B, and
Series 2003 C, in the aggregate amount of $§47,775 through the Illinois Finance Authority (the Series 2003
Bonds}. Proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds were used to advance refund then-existing indebtedness and to
provide funding for various capifal expansion projects, On May 23, 2008, the IHlinois Health Facilities
Authority remarketed the Series 2003 Bonds as Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds (Series 2003 Remarketed
Bonds) in the aggregate amount of $39,050 on behalf of the Hospital. The proceeds from the Series 2003
bond remarketing were used to canvert the Series 2003 . Auction Ratc Certificates to fixed rate revenue

bonds. ATTACHMENT 39
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Principal and interest payments on the Series 2003 Remarketed Bonds are guaranteed by a bond insurance
policy. In addition, the bonds are secured by Delnor Hospital’s unrestricted receivables. Provisions of the
bond indentures require Delnor Hospital to maintain certain minimum financial ratios and limit new
borrowings and transfers of property subject to compliance with certain financial ratios.

In June 2008, the Hospital issued Variable Rate Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 20084, in the
amount of $59,090 through the Ilincis Finance Authority (the Series 2008A Bonds), The Series 2008A
Bonds were issued pursuant to the Delnor Master Trust Indenture. Proceeds of the Series 2008A Bonds
were used to retire then-existing indebtedness. The bonds were sccured by Delnor Hospital’s unrestricted
receivables and an irrevocabie letter of credit, which was set to expire October 15, 2013. On August 24,
2011, Delnor Hospital refunded the Series 2008 A Bonds outstanding in the par amount of $58,415. The
refunding of the Series 2008 A Bonds was funded with the issuance of the IHiinois Finance Authority Series
2011C Bonds in the par amount of $58,415. The Series 2011 C Bonds were issued in the Index Mode and
have a mandatory tender date of August 24, 2018, The Scries 2011 C Bonds are secured by Delnor

Hospital.

Deferred finance charges consist of underwriter fees and other issuance costs. Defeired finance charges are
amortized vsing the bonds outstanding method over the periods in which the related obligations are
cxpected to be outstanding,

At June 30, 2011, the fair valuc of the Series 2009Iand Serics 2009 B fixed rate bonds was $89,748 and

$246,802, respectively. The recorded carrying amount of the Serics 2009 and Series 2009B fixed rate
bonds was $88,578, net of unamortized discount, and $240,977, net of unamortized premium, respectively.

At June 30, 2011, the fair values of the Series 2002 A-D and Series 2003 A-C fixed rate bonds was
$34,066 and $33,889, respectively. The recorded carrying amount of the Series 2002A-D and Series
2003A-C fixed rate bonds was $35,753, including unamortized premium, and $34,562, including

unamortized premium, respectively.

At June 30, 2011, the fair value of the Corporations® variable rate long-term debt approximated recorded
amounts,

Scheduled principal repaymeats of long-term debt, after giving effect to the refinancing of the Series 2004
A Bonds and Series 2008 A Bonds on August 5, 2011 and August 24, 2011, respectively, are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2012 $ 4,658
2013 ' 4,969
2014 14,642
2015 . 12,755
2016 . 13,350
Thereafter 548,081

$ 598,465
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CDHealth is a limited partner in HealthTrack Sports & Weilness, LP, an Illinois limited partnership that
owns and operates a sports and fitness facility located in Glen Ellyn, Illincis (HealthTrack). CDHealth’s
affiliate DuPage Health Scrvices, Inc. (DHSI) is a member of the limited liability company that serves as
general partner of the limited partnership. CDHealth guarantees one-half of the debt and interest rate swaps
of HealthTrack. As of June 30, 2011, thcre was $4,000 of debt outstanding at HealthTrack, of which
CDHealth has guaranteed $2,000. HealthTrack has a fixed payer interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to
fluctuations in intercst rates. The swap had a liability of $575 at June 30, 2011, $288 of which was subject
to the CDHealth guaranfy. There is no collateral posting requirement on the swap. CDHealth has not been
required to make any payment pursvant to this bank guaranty.

CDHealth is a member with a one-third ownership inferest in Bloomingdale Life Time Fitness, LLC, an
Illinois limited Jiability company that owns a sports and fitness facility Jocated in Bloomingdale, Illinois
(Lifetime), CDHealth guarantees one-third of the debt and interest rate swaps of Lifetime. As of June 30,
2011, there was $7,300 of debt outstanding at Lifetime, of which CDHealth has guaranteed $2,433.
CDHealth has not been required to make any payment pursuant to its guaranty.

During 2010, CDHealth sold its senior care and living facilities. Pursuant to the terms of the sale
agreement, CDHealth agreed to provide certain liquidity and guarantecs of buyer acquisition debt and
obligations subsequent to the date of sale. CDHealth also guarantced certain long-term debt of the senior
care facilities assumed by the buyer. Pursuant to these terms, CDHealth deposited $6,400 in escrow
accounts for the benefit of the senior lender in the event the buyer does not make scheduled debt service
payments or comply with spccified debt covenants, Such ¢scrow amounts are included with assets whose
use is limited — funds held by trustees. In addition, CDlealth has provided the senior lender a put option
for a five-year period subsequent to the transaction date that allows the senior lender to put the buyer debt
to CDHealth in the event the buyer fails to satisfy occupancy, debt service coverage, or days cash on hand
ratios for any quarter. The put option extends to the earlier of the maturity date on the debt or the
achievement of the aforementioned ratios for four consecutive quarters. In the event the senior lender puts
the debt to CDHealth, CDHealth will assume the debt under the same terms and conditions as the buyer.
Total debt outstanding at June 30, 2011 subject to the guarantees approximated $36,915. As of June 30,
2011}, no escrowed funds have been drawn upon nor have the Corporations been required to assume the
buyer acquisition debt or make any payments pursuant to the gnarantee arrangements, Any payments made
under the guarantees will be secured by the assets of the senior care and living facilities.

Employee Retirement Plans

CDHealth sponsors a defined contribution retirement plan (the Plan) that covers substantially all
employees of CDH, CDPG, CNS, PAHCS II, Special Health, and Foundation. The Plan is a money
purchase defined contribution plan qualified under Section 401 of the Code. Other significant provisions of

the Plan are as follows:

. Contributions — The Corporations contribute 5% of qualified cmployees’ gross annual earniings into
each participant’s plan account. Employee contributions to the Plan are not pennitted. The

Corporations fund the Plan annually for the plan year ended December 31.
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* Qualification — To qualify for the Plan, employees must complete onc year of employment, be at
least 2| years of age, and provide a minimum of 1,000 hours of annual scrvice.

Vesting — Prior to January I, 2002, employces vested in the Plan over a seven-year period. As of
January [, 2002, the vesting period was reduced to a six-year period. Forfeited employer

contributions revert back to the Corporations.

Effective July 1, 1999, CDHealth and participating affiliates adopted a matched savings plan under
Section 403(b) of the Code (the 403(b) Plan). The 403(b)Plan is a defined contribution plan and
significant pravisions of the 403(b) Plan are as follows:

. Contributions — Employees contribute to the 403(b) Plan through salary reductions specified in the
participant’s salary reduction agreement. CDHealth and affiliates, at their sole discretion, may make
matching contributions to the 403(b)Plan equal to a defined percentage of the participant’s
contributions for participants who have earned one year of service.

. Qualification — Employees employed on July 1, 1999 were immediately cligible to participate in the
403(b) Plan. An employee hired after July 1, 1999 and before the 15th day of the month in which
they were hired become eligible to participate in the 403(b) Plan on the first day of the month after

the employce has earned one hour of service.

» Vesting — Employees are fully vested in their participant contributions to the 403(b) Plan. Prior to
January 1, 2002, employer contributions vested over a scven-year period. As of January 1, 2002, the
vesting period was reduced to a six-year perjod. Forfeited employer contributions revert back to

CDHealth and its affiliatcs.

The Corporations make contributions to the Plan and the 403(b) Plan equal to armmounts accrued for pension
expense. Pension expense of $2,456 for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011 has been recognized
under the terms of the Plan and the 403(b) Plan and is included with employec bencfits expense.

CDHealth and CDH also sponsor deferred compensation programs to supplement the income of
participating individuals during retirement or following separation from the organization. Eligibility for the
plans is restricted to specified executives or as defined by the Internal Revenue Service for certain “highly
paid” employees. The deferred compensation plans are not qualified retirement plans under Section 401 of
the Code. Contributions to the plans are stipulated in the plan documents and involve various
methodologies depending on the plan. These range from use of an actuarial analysis based on
compensation, an annual sum approved at the Board’s discretion or salary deferrals as elected by the
participants. CDHealth and CDH have recorded $75 of pension expense during the three-month period
ended June 30, 2011 under provisions of the deferred compensation plans. Amounts accrued for the benefit
of the specified participants under the plans are reflected as retircment plan liabilities in the noncurrent

liabjlities section of the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Delnor Hospital and Residential Living mainiain defined contribution plans covering substantially all
full-time employees of Delnor Hospital and Residential Living, Contributions are 2% of cach covered
- employee’s salary and a matching portion of 50% of the employce’s contribution up to a maximum of 4%

of individual earnings. DelCom maintains a 401(k) plan for the employees of DelCom. DelCom will match
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contributions up to 4% of the employee’s contribution. The total cost of these plans was approximately
$570 for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011, and is included in employee benefits expense in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations. These plans are funded on a current basis.

(14) Self-insurance

(a)

Professional and General Liability

Effective April 16, 1979, CDH entered into a contractual agreement with the Illinois Provider Trust
(IPT), a self-insurance administrator that, through its xisk-sharing provisions, provided CDH with
insurance coverage for medical, professional, and comprehensive general liability exposure. CDH
ceased participation in IPT effective July 1, 1999. CDH obtained various levels of primary and
excess insurance coverage from IPT on an occurrence basis while a participant in the program prior
to July I, 1999. 1IPT is a multi-hospital trust formed pursvant to the provisions of the Iliinois
Religious and Charitable Risk Pooling Act. Hospitals participating in IPT are obligated to make
additional contributions necessary for maintaining frust asscts at a level adequate to support
anticipated disbursements as defined in the trust agreement. This obligation continues beyond the

period of participation in the trust.

For the period July 1, 1999 through August 12, 2002, CDH obtained coverage from commercial
insurance carriers for all professional and general liability claims. For the period July I, 1999
through August 12, 2001, coverage was occurrence-based; and for the period August 13, 2001
through August 12, 2002, such coverage was on a claims-madc basis. The commercial carricr, which
provided coverage for the period July 1, 1999 through June 30, 2000 is insolvent and CDH does not
expect the carricr to be able to pay claims for contracted coverage limits. Effective August 13, 2002,
CDH clected to again participate in the IPT. Profcssional liability coverage, as well as excess
coverage obtained from the IPT, was on a claims-made basis whereas general liability continued on

an occurrence basis,

As of Janvary I, 2006, CDH terminated its participation in the IPT and became self-insured for all its
professional and general liability claims made on or subscquent to that date. CDH has procured
excess liability coverage from commercial carriers on a claims-made basis to insurc those claims that
may exceed a stated self-insured retention amount. A self-insyrance trust fund is maintained for
anticipated claims that may be payable from the retained amount based on an actuarial review of
historical and industry claims patterns. CD'H utilizes the services of a professional consultant for
actuarial evaluations of sclf-insured funding requirements. CDH has designated attorneys to handle
legal matters relating to medical, professional, and comprchensive general liability matters. The
CDH professional and general liability insurance program also provides coverage to other CDHealth
affiliates, excluding affiliates that merged with CDHealth on April 1, 2011. The Corporations
recognize a provision for the ultimate cost of claims reported that fall within the self-insured
retention, cost of claims not insured, and estimates of claims incurred but not reported as of the

respective consolidated balance sheet dates for uninsured exposures.

Delnor Hospital is under a contractual agreement with IPT for its medical, professional, and

comprehensive general liability exposures. Coverage obtained from IPT was provided on an
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occurrence basgis through December 31, 2004, Effective January I, 2005, IPT began providing
primary insurance coverage on a claims-made basis. Excess coverage currently provided through IPT
is on the claims-made basis. General liability coverage is on an occurrence basis. As of July L, 2011,
Delnor Hospital tetminated its participation in IPT and became self-insured for all its medical,
professional, and comprehensive general liability claims made on or subsequent to that date.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported at June 30, 2011 is actuarially determined using
factors including historical Corporations’ and specific industry experience. The estimated
outstanding professional and general claims liability of $38,393 at June 30, 2011 is included with
deferred revenue and other long-term liabilitics. Included in other expense are provisions of $3,145
for professianal and general liability program expenses. No portion of the professional and general
claims liability is reported within current liabilities, as the amount expected to be paid w1th1n one
year of the consolidated balance sheet is not determinable.

() Workers® Compensation

The Corporations maintain self-insurance programs for workers’ compensation coverage, Accrued
workers’ compensation claims of $6,401 at June 30, 2011 are included with deferred revenue and
other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The provision for claims
incurred but not reported at June 30, 2011 is actuarially determined using factors including the
Corporations® historical and industry-specific experience, Provisions for the self-insured workers’
compensation claims of $1,836 for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011 are included in
employee benefits expense as the best estimate of workers’ compensation insurance costs. Coverage
from commercial insurance carriers i3 maintained for claims in excess of self-insured retention
levels. No portion of the workers® compensation claims liability is reported within current liabilities,
as the amount expected to be paid within one year of the consolidated balance sheet is not

determinable.

{c) Healthcare

The Corporations also participate in a program of self-insurance for employee healthcare coverage.
Accrued health claims of $3,387 at June 30, 2011 are included with other accrued liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet, Provisions for self-insured employee healthcare claims
amounted to $9,314 for the three-month period ended June 30, 2011 and are included in employee
benefits expense. Stop-loss reinsurance coverage is maintained for claims in cxcess of stop-loss

limnits.
CDHealth is self-insured for employee dental coverage. Accrued dental claims of approximateiy
$143 at June 30, 2011 are included with other accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheet. Provisions for self-insured employee dental claims amounted to $275 for the
three-month period ended June 30, 2011 and are included in employee benefits expense.

(15) Endowments
The Corporations comply with the provisions of ASC Subtopic 958. ASC Subtopic 958 provides guidance
on the net asset classification of donor-restricted endowment funds for a not- I{WA é‘%wag 811 that is
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subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006
(UPMIFA) and also required disclosures about endowments funds, both donor-restricted endowment funds

and board-designated endowment funds.

The Foundation established two donor-restricted endowment funds {collectively referred to as the Funds),
the principal of which may not be expended. The interest and dividend income and realized gains from the
fund established in 1973 and the fund established in 2001 are utilized for CDH operations and a physician
scrvices program, respectively. The Funds are classified in permanently restricted net asscts in the

consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2011.

The Funds’ activity for the three-months ended June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Beginning fair value $ 5,255
Curent year contributions 3
Income:

Interest and dividends 15
Disbursements:
Assets released from restriction (12)
Unrealized gains, net 4
Ending fair value $ 5,265

The principal of the Funds is approximately $5,265 at June 30, 2011. The fair value of assets associated
with individual donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below the amount of the original donation as a
result of unfavorable market conditions, There were no such deficiencies as of June 30, 2011,
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Physician Loans

Delnor Hospital has linc-of-credit agreements with physicians under guidelines approved by the board of
directors. The agreements arc extended to physicians where a community need is identified. The
agreements have a maximum term of two ycars. Under the terms of the loan agreements, Delnor Hospital
will provide partial forgiveness of the principal and interest owed for every year the physician serves the
community up fo four years after the initial term of the agreement. At June 30, 2011, approximately $1,819
of physician loans due within onc year were recorded as other current assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. At June 30, 2011, approximately $1,227 of physician loans due after one year
were recorded as other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance shect.

Commitments and Contingencies

(@) Litigation
The Corporations are invelved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. In consultation
with legal counscl, management estimates that these matters will be resolved without material
adverse effect on the Corporations’ financial position or results from operations.

(b) Regulatory Investigations

The U.S. Department of Justice and other federal agencies routinely conduct regulatory
investigations and compliance audits of healthcare providers, The Corporations are subject to these
regulatory efforts. Management is currently unaware of any regulatory matters that will result in a
material adverse effect on the Corporations’ financial position or results from operations.

(¢} Investment Risks und Uncertainties

The Corporations invest in various investment securities. Investment securitics are exposed fo
various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility 1isks. Due to the level of risk
associated with certain investment securities, it is at Jeast reasonably possible that changes in the
values of investment securities will occur in the near term and fhat such changes could materially

affect the amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Subsequent Events

In connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and in accordance with ASC
Topic 855, Subseguent Events, the Corporations evaluated subscquent events after the balance sheet date of
June 30, 2011 through September 21, 2011, which was the date the consolidated financial statements were

available to be issued.
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Unaudited Supplementary Information

The following information is not audited, but is required supplemental pro forma information. The Corporations’
revenue, excess of revenues and gains over expenses and losses, and changes in each component of nct assets for
the year ended June 30, 2011, as if the merger had occurred as of July 1, 2010, are as follows:

Revenue by 951,516
Excess of revenues and gains over
expenses and losses $ 173,420

Changes in net assets:
Unrestricted $ 176,791

Temporarily restricted (2,047}

Permanently restricted 642

Total changes in pet assets b 175,386
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents
Current portion of assels limited or restricted as to use
Roceivables:
Patient and sesident acgounts, less allowance
for doubtfu! accounts of $27,046
Estimated receivables under thind-party reimbursemen
programs and other
Inveniones
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Assets whose use is limited or restricted:
By board for investmen
Self-insurance trust

Held by trustee under debt agreements
Donor restricted

/e

Total asstis whose use is limited
or restricied, net of current portion

Land, buildings, and equipment, net of
accumuiated depreciation and amoniization

Other agsets:
Motes and advapces recelvable
Retirement plan assets
Investments in joiut ventures
and other assels

Total other assets
Total assets

Semraccompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Community

Nursing
Central CDH CDH Central Service of

Central DuPage Obligated Obligated Delnor- DuPage DuPage

DuPage Haspital Group Gronp Community Physician County,

Health Association eliminations subtotal Haospital Group Inc.

1,122 25,331 — 26,453 9315 62 320
—_ _ —_ — 100 — —_
248 FrI2 —_ 77.960 23,936 3912 3,781
2,688 32,865 {1,142) 34411 1,204 645 174
— 2,446 — 2,446 2,931 — -—
2.815 10,199 — 19,014 1,415 — 10
12,873 148,553 {1,142y 160.284 38,901 4.61% 4,285
607,671 74,790 — 332 46) 193290 2 5,832
27,629 — —_ 27,629 —_ — —
49,135 — —_ 49,135 — —_ —
— —_ — —_ 20% — —
634,435 274,790 — 959,225 193.49% 8 5832
109,897 532,050 —_ 641,947 123,518 3,743 413
57,985 — — 57,985 — —_ —
4372 — — 4372 —_ -— -
36.882 — — 36.882 5.793 1.9%4 506
99,239 —_ — 99,232 5.793 1,994 506
506,444 955,393 {1.142) 1,860,695 361711 10,365 11,036
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Central
DuPage DuPage Central Delaor- Delnar- Living Well Delnor-
Health Special DuPage Community Community Cancer Community
Services, PAHCS Health Health Health Care DeiCom Resideatial Resource Health
Iac. J 1 Association Foundation Foundation Corporation Liviog, Inc. Centler System Eliminatipns Consolidated

70 768 141 295 1,393 1,208 528 — 348 — 40,599

- — — — — - — — —_ — 100

— 1,013 739 —_ — —_— — — — — 111,341

1,354 36 179 154 133 912 62 _ 243 (7.449) 32,058

—_ — 59 — 44 -_ — - _— —_ 5,480

60 [€)] — — — 3 I3 — 12 — 20,524

1,484 1.814 1.118 449 1,570 2,121 603 — 603 {7.449) 210.402

_ 1,694 5,602 15,905 — 809 5,067 1,114 — 1,111,783

—_ —_ - — — —_ — — —_ — 27,629

— —_ - — - — — — — — 49,135

— — —_ 9,007 2,895 —_ — 1,409 — — 13,520

—- — 1,694 14.609 13.800 —_ 309 6476 1.114 — 1,202,067

370 146 3 &1 24,987 51l 15,205 1,257 6,113 — 818,279

— — - — —_ — — —_ — 57,985

— — - — —_ _— — — — — 4,372

N 204 — — 263 2,802 4207 1,109 206 6,351 {10,985) 49,332
"

—] 204 — — 263 2,802 4,207 1,109 206 6,351 (10,985} 111,689

ﬂ 2,058 1.960 2,815 15.382 43.159 6,539 17.726 7,939 14,186 {18.434) 2,342 437
%
Zz
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Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Current installments of long-term debi
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:
Salaries and wages
Pension
Interest
ther
Estimated payables under third-party
reimbursement programs

Total current linbilities

Long-term debt, net of unamortized bond premiums
and current installments

Construction payables

Retirement plan liabilities

Deferred reverme and other Jisbilities

Total liabilities

Met assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanen(ly restricted

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and azt assats

28 accompanying independent suditors” report.
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Community
Nursing
Central CDH cpH Ceptral Service of
Central DuPage Oblizated Obligated Delnor- BuPage DuPage
DuPage Hospital Group Group Community Physician County,
Health Assotiation ¢liminations subfotal Hospilal Group Tnc.
3 2,575 —_ — 2,575 2,050 —_ —
15,429 15,301 (1.142) 29,588 5,262 3,723 1,305
9,840 36,128 - 45958 i 0,'?9;1 2,312 -
— 3367 - 3,367 —_ — —
3,282 — — 3282 7i5 — —
8,610 14,338 — 22,948 1.979 73 523
— 67.266 — $£7.266 19,809 — —
39,736 136,400 (1,142) 174,994 40,609 5,903 1,828
466,854 —_ —_ 466,854 126,681 — —_
— 10,091 — 10,091 — — —_
4,372 -— —_ 4372 — — -
61,501 4.842 — 66,343 12.56% — —
572,463 151,333 (1.142) 722,654 180,259 5508 1.828
333,981 804,060 — 1,138,041 179,959 4,457 9,208
—_ —_ —_ — 1,493 — —
333.981 804,060 — 1.138,041 181,452 4457 9,208
3 906,444 9535.393 (1,142) 1,860,695 361,711 10,365 11,036
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Schedule I

Central
DuPage DuPage Ceniral Dcloor- Detoor- Living Well Delnor-
Health Special DuPage Commuonity Community Cancer Commuaity
Services, PAHCS Hcalih Health Health Care DelCom Residential Resource Health

Inc. 11 Association Foundation Foundation Corporation Living, Inc. Center System Eliminations Consolidated
— — — — 33 — — — — — 4,658

— 418 649 i88 1,057 17 583 31 947 (7,449) 36,319

— 5 — 20 — 471 124 — 1,001 — 60,525

— —_ — — —_ — — — — — 3,367

— —_ — - — —_— — — — 3,997

25 — — — — — — — — O] 15,542

— — — — — — — — — — 87,075

25 443 649 218 1,080 488 707 3l 1,948 (7,455) 221,433

—_ —_ —_ 1,867 — —_ —_ —_ —_— 595,402

— — — — — _ — — — — 10,091

— — — = — — — — — 4372

—_ — - —_ 654 - 6,714 — 461 — 87.14)

23 443 649 218 161 488 7421 3] 2409 (7,455} 918,489

2,033 1,517 2,166 6,157 41,653 6,351 2,197 6,293 13,777 (8,381) 1,410,428

— — — 3,742 2,895 — 1,108 1,615 — (2,598) 8,255

— — 5265 — — — — — — 5,265

2,033 1,517 2166 15,164 44,543 6,351 10,305 7,908 11,777 (10,979) 1,423,948
2,058 1,960 2,815 15.382 48.159 6.838 17.726 7939 14,186 (18.434) 2,342,437
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Net patient and resident service revenue
Other revenuc

Total revenue

Exponses:
Salaries and wages
Employce benefits
Professional fecs and purchased services
Supplics
Tnilercst
Depreciation and amortizalion
Pravisien for uucollectible accounts

Other
Total expenses
Revenue in excess (deficient)
of expenses
Nonoperating gains and losses:

investment return, nnresiticted contributions
and other, net

Revenue and gains in cxcess
{deficient} of cxpenses and losses

Other changes in unrestrictcd net assets:
Change in net unrealized gains and Josses
on pther-than-trading securitics
‘L= Joint venture equity transactions
Net ussets released from restriction for the purchase
j of land, buildings, and equipment
Equity transfers among affiliates

s

Q Increase (decrease} In
g unrestricted net assets
9%

L

£ accompanying independent auditors’ report,

CDH/DELNOR HEALTH SYSTEM AND AFFILIATES
Consalidating Statervent of Operations Information

Peried of April 1,2011 (date of merger) through June 30, 2011

(In thousands)
Community
Nursing
Central CidH CDH Central - Service of
Central DuPage Obligated Ohligated Delnor- DPuPage DuPage
DuPage Hospital Group Group Community Physiciano County,
Health Association elimioations subtotal Hospital Group Tac.

423 166,136 358) 165,751 48,646 9,487 3,511
15,472 4,817 (11.293) 8,996 1,005 835 88
15.895 171.003 (12,1510 174,747 49 651 10322 3,599

1,13 44,569 — 52,290 16,360 10,606 2367
4,711 9,688 — 14,399 5,925 1,390 527
11,625 28,000 (11,293 28,332 4 448 i3 409
1,321 26,831 — 28,152 7,106 775 309

3,203 — — 3,203 — —

3,076 10,686 — 13,762 3,288 513 52
14 11,132 — 11,146 3,615 304 (140}
4,183 8,365 (858) 11,690 5,555 3,056 284
35,854 135,271 {12.151) 162,974 46295 16057 3.808
(19,95%) 31,132 — 11,773 3,356 (5,735} 209)
3103 1.938 —_ 5,041 {1.737) 20 {166)
{16,8546) 33,670 — 16,814 1,61% {5,715) (375
622 1.768 — 1,146 — 118 43

36 — — 36 — — —

—_ 119 — i19 Bl — _
{4.260) (3,398} - {7,658} (5.086) 8,114 —

{21.702) 32,158 _ 10.457 (3.377) 2.517 (334)
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Schedule 2

4}

Ceniral
DuPage DuPape Central Delnor- Ddlnor- Living Well Dclingr-
Health Special DuPage Communoity Community Cancer Community
Services, PABCS Heaith Health Hezlth Care DelCom Residential Resonrce Health
Ine. 11 Association Foundation Foundation Corporation Living, Ipnc. Center System Ellminations Conscolidated
1,672 862 — — — — — (778) 229,151
— 8 -— — 1,274 2,133 1,109 233 422 (2,729) 13,374
— 1.68¢ 862 — 1,274 2,133 1,109 233 422 (3.507) 242,525
—_ 582 208 — 596 1,452 347 11l 643 a7 84,585
— 120 32 — 21 349 131 27 —_ (208} 22,713
2 319 80 —_ 62 139 90 16 24 (1,778) 32,154
— 44 409 — 7 5 45 13 —_ {6) 36,859
_ _ — —_ - — — —_ — — 3,203
— 8 — — 124 64 202 — 164 — 18,177
— 146 57 — — — — — — — 15,128
5 196 43 — 496 217 194 66 276 {1,137} 20.946
7 1,415 834 — 1306 2226 1.009 233 1107 (3,506} 233,765
N 265 28 — {(32) 3 109 —_ (685) [4)] 8,760
57 — 9 (186) (638) 445 (382) 41 367 {425) 3,016
50 265 n {186) {100} 352 (282) 4] (318 {426) 11,776
—_ — 15 51 — — — - — — 1,371
— — — — 36
>
j — — — — — — — — — — 200
- — (500 — (29) 24 — 5036 26 — 73 —
a
% 50 (235) 52 (164} 76) 352 4,754 67 (318) (353} 13,392
Z
—]
(e
o
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lncrease (decrease) in unrestricted net asscts
Temporarily restricted nct assets:
Contritmtions for specific purposes
Investment refurn
Net assets released from restriction
and used for operations
Change in net interest of DCHCF
Net assets released from restriction used for the purchase
of land, huildings, and equipiment

Increase {decrease) in temporarily
restricted net assels

Permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions to he held in perperuity
Investment retin

Increase in permnnently resivicied
net assets

Change in net assets
Nect assets at the beginning o